ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPIMIENT AGENCY 71 cconoMC DIVEOPHENT CORPORATION FOR B COUNTY
BuUFrFaLO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP.
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP.

Joint Governance Committee Meeting
March 19, 2025 at 12:00 p.m.

ECIDA Offices - 95 Perry Street, 4th Floor
Buffalo, New York 14203

Agenda
1. Approval of Minutes — January 29, 2025 (Action) (Pages 2-3)
2. 2024 PAAA Annual Report (Action) (Pages 4-58)
3. Results of ECIDA’s 2024 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 59-74)

4. ECIDA Mission Statement & 2025 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 75-83)

5. 2024 Board of Directors Evaluation/Survey (Action) (Pages 84-88)
6. Governance Committee 2024 Self-Evaluation (Action) (Pages 89-92)
7. ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies

Airborne Infectious Disease Policy (Action Items) (Pages 93-102)

Freedom of Information Law (FOIL) Policy (Action Items) (Pages 103-107)
Property Disposition Guidelines (Action Items) (Pages 108-114)

Record Retention and Disposition Policy (Action Items) (Page 115)

Sexual Harassment Policy (Action Items) (Pages 116-126)

o0 o

8. PARIS Report Update (informational)
9. Board Member PAAA Training Update (informational)

10. Adjourn

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 « Buffalo, New York 14203 ¢ ph. 716.856.6525 « fx. 716.856.6754 » www.ecidany.com



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA),
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP. (RDC)
AND
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP. (ILDC)

DATE: January 29, 2025 at the Erie County Industrial Development Agency,
95 Perry Street, 4™ Floor Conference Room, Buffalo, New York 14203

PRESENT: Thomas Baines, Zachary Evans, Tyra Johnson, Hon. Brian Kulpa,
Kenneth Schoetz and David State

EXCUSED: Hon. John Gilmour, Brenda McDuffie and Hon. Christopher P. Scanlon

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President & CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial
Officer; Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of Operations; Atiqa Abidi,
Accounting Manager; Grant Lesswing, Director of Business
Development; Carrie Ann Hocieniec, Operations Assistant/Assistant
Secretary; Brian Krygier, Director of Information Technology; Lori
Szewczyk, Director of Grants and Andrew Pawenski, Esq., General
Counsel/Harris Beach Murtha

GUESTS: Yessica Vasquez on behalf of the City of Buffalo

There being a quorum present at 12:09 p.m., the Meeting of the Members of the Joint
Governance Committee of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and
Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC) and the Buffalo and Erie County
Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC) was called to order by Mr. John Cappellino,
acting in place of Committee Chair Ms. Brenda McDuffie.

MINUTES

The October 24, 2024 minutes of the joint meeting of the Governance Committee of the
ECIDA, RDC and ILDC were presented. Upon motion made by Mr. Kulpa and seconded by Mr.
Schoetz, the approval of the October 24, 2024 meeting minutes was unanimously carried.

REVIEW OF “ECIDA 2024 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE
MEASUREMENTS - RESULTS”

Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2024 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements. Mr.
Kulpa discussed and noted that potential amendments to Adaptive Re-use policy may be desirable
to encompass site re-use. General discussion ensued with regard to the remaining Objectives.



Draft
Subject to Committee Approval

REVIEW OF <“ECIDA 2025 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE
MEASUREMENTS - GOALS”

Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2025 Mission Statement.

Ms. O’Keefe next reviewed the 2025 Performance Measurements, Goals. With respect to
Goal 1, Objective 1A, Mr. Kulpa recommended the increase of private investment goal from $300
million to $325 million. General discussion ensued.

Upon motion to (i) accept and recommend the 2024 Mission Statement and Performance
Results to Board, and (ii) accept and recommend the 2025 Mission Statement and Performance
Goals to the Board, subject to such amendments thereto recommended by the committee made Mr.
Kulpa and seconded by Mr. State, Mr. Cappellino called for a vote, and the motion was
unanimously carried.

There being no further business to discuss, on motion of Mr. Kulpa and seconded by Mr.
Schoetz, Mr. Cappellino adjourned the meeting at 1:02 p.m.

Dated: January 29, 2025

Elizabeth A. O’Keefe, Secretary






Description of the Agency:

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation
that provides tax incentives, financing programs, export assistance, land development and
other economic development services to the City of Buffalo and Erie County, New York.

ECIDA has two affiliated not-for-profit organizations as follows:

1) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC). This is a
lending corporation that administers two revolving loan funds (RLFs). The first
was capitalized by an Economic Development Admin%p” %1 (EDA) grant with

matching funds from the City of Buffalo. The EDA released its federal interest in

this original (“Legacy”) RLF in 2021. The second RI* s capitalized by a 2020

EDA grant as part of the Coronavirus Aid %ﬁlie Economic Security

(CARES) Act.

=Y

2) Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Iéind Development Corporation (ILDC).
The ILDC takes ownership of distresSed" i
to productive use. The ILDC was restru
exempt interest debt on behalf of Erie
organizations finance develo‘ j
County, the ILDC also admini
a micro-loan program funded

sources.

009 to allow if to issue tax-
to assist local not-for-profit
er cost. On behalf of Frie

These corporations a
ECIDA and RDC share
board is comprised of i3
these corporations is ow

‘ince they ‘are managed by the same personnel. The
athe Board of Digectors as their oversight body. The ILDC

It{%pt ageficy, ECIDA and its affiliates are required to comply

¢ State’s P%glic Authorities Law. Under this Law, the ECIDA and its
ired to submit a comprehensive annual report that includes information
ﬁ: it -3

Operations and accomplishments

Financial reports

Mission statement and measurements

Bonds and notes outstanding

Compensation (for those with a salary in excess of $100,000)
Projects undertaken during the year

Property Report

Code of Ethics

. An assessment of internal control structure and effectiveness
0. Legislation that forms the statutory basis of the authority

Nk LN~

r—-\opo

2

-5-



11. Board structure

12. By-Laws

13. Listing of material changes in operations and programs during the reporting year
14. Four-year financial plan

15. Board Performance Evaluations

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding

17. Description of material pending litigation

In compliance with the Public Authorities Law, the following required information is
presented for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.

1. Operations & Accomplishments:

A report on the 2024 operations and accomplishments éf the

IDA and its affiliates is
posted on the ECIDA’s website at http://www.ecidans

2. Financial Reports:

i) Audited Financial Statements:
The audited financial statements for the ECIDA
ECIDA’s website at http://www.cei
financial statement certification is incli

The financial statements are audited J
Lumsden McCormick, LEP#n, their opuué?ﬁ, statements present fairly, in all
material respects, thce?”f inanci sition of t ECIDA ‘and its affiliates as of December
31, 2024, and the &cﬁ atiges in financial p0s1t10n‘ "ig! cash flows for the year then ended in
conformlty with accot ‘ntang prin ples gen:gra y accepted in the United States of

iplents of various pass-through Federal, State and
utilized for land development, loan, and other economic
ils of the various grants are outlined in the notes to the

In accomplishing its? mission, ECIDA does not receive any operational funding or
subsidies from Fedefal, State, County or local sources. Instead, ECIDA relies prlmarlly
upon administrative fees charged to those businesses that utilize its products and services.

iii) Operating & Financial Risks:
The following outline some of the operating and financial risks that impact the ECIDA
and its affiliates:

* New York State Legislation — The New York State Legislature can impose
various restrictions on the ability of Industrial Development Agencies to provide
tax incentives which could significantly impact the revenue of the ECIDA.

3

-6-



» Collectability of loans receivable — The RDC and ILDC operate various revolving
loan programs and as such their financial results are impacted by the collectability
of the related loans.

e Litigation - To provide various tax incentives or grants, ECIDA takes a leasehold
or ownership interest in various properties and is at times brought into various
lawsuits that could impact ECIDA’s financial results or affect insurability.

® Regulations — The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC are subject to various regulations
including those imposed by the NYS Authorities Budget Office and the Federal
Economic Development Administration. These regulations may increase the cost
of compliance or impact the financial position of the Agency.

“fees generated from

ber and/or size of those

various projects that it assists, a reduction in the
projects would significantly impact the Agency’

The ECIDA mitigates a portion of the above risks through rudent findncial management,
external legal guidance and comprehensive i 1nsura coverage

iv) Current bond ratings: ._ o,
The ECIDA and ILDC act as conduits for tax-exempt:bofid financings by various not-for-
ts, ECIDA and ILDC do not

profit and other eligible borrowers. A s conduit bond issue
issue bonds on their own behalf and th
agencies.

The ECIDA has long-tetfm ;W
to funds held on b :f of others s under certaln ﬁduc1ary arrangements as outlined in the

‘ A employees are not covered by any
prwdeti With any post-retirement benefits.

ipment. The ffice Iease i s recognized as a right-to-use lease asset and lease
e audited financjal statements.

The ECIDA’s Mis Statement & Measurements Report for 2024 is included in
Attachment 1. This ﬁocument was reviewed and approved by the Board at the March 27,
2024 Board meeting.

4. Schedule of Bonds and Notes Outstanding:

Attachment 2 summarizes ECIDA’s and ILDC’s bonds and notes outstanding at
December 31, 2024. The indebtedness shown on these schedules is conduit debt and is
not an obhgatlon of ECIDA, ILDC, Erie County or New York State. Neither the ECIDA
nor the ILDC records the assets or liabilities resulting from completed bond and note



issues in their accounts since their primary function is to facilitate the financing between
the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders.

5. Compensation Schedule:

See Attachment 3 for a list of ECIDA employees who had a salary exceeding $100,000
during 2024. Attachment 3A is a summary of benefits provided to those staff as per the
New York State Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). Biographies
for these individuals are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/staff-
directory. Salaries and benefit information for other ECIDA staff are also reported under
the PARIS system. '

None of the directors of ECIDA or its affiliates receiyé any, compensatlon for their
services as directors. None of the officers of ECIDA or its ~affiliates receive any
compensation for their services as officers beyondf: hel'@compens&:t' n as employees.
None of the ECIDA affiliates had any employees di

ng 2024.

Ethics is posted on the ECIDA’s website at
t-us-corporate-policies.

9. Assessment o R’é.Eﬁé%tiveness of Internal Control Structure and Procedures:

Management’s Assessment of the Effectiveness of Internal Controls of the ECIDA, RDC
and ILDC is posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-
corporate-reports.

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC’s independent auditors have conducted an audit of the
internal control over financial reporting and their report is included in the audited
financial statements posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-
us-corporate-reports.

10. Legislation that forms the Statutory Basis of the Authority:




ECIDA
Industrial development agencies (“IDAs”) are formed under Article 18-A of New York

State General Municipal Law, as public benefit corporations. IDAs were created to
actively promote, encourage, attract and develop job and recreational opportunities and
economically-sound commerce and industry in cities, towns, villages and counties
throughout New York State (the “State”). IDAs are empowered to provide financial
assistance to private entities through tax incentives in order to promote the economic
welfare, prosperity and recreational opportunities for residents of a municipality
(“Benefited Municipality™).

Section 891a of the General Municipal Law outlines the composition of the Erie County
IDA membership and additional powers granted to the ECIDA. A copy of this specific
legislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=3$3GMU891-A$$@TXGMU0891-

A+&LIST=L AW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TOKEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIE

w
h N
RDC & ILDC
The RDC & ILDC are local developm
to conduct certain projects pursuantito
Distinguished from IDAs (which exist%as

established as charitabiled ediporations ?ﬁ‘t’

orfjorations whichafgiformed and empowered
\ T?or-Proﬁt }Corporatlon Law §1411.
1C =ﬁéﬁt corporations), LDCs are
are em powered to construct, acquire,
ndustrial or manufacturing plants in the
o be conducted (“Benefited Territory”)
and to make Ioans DCﬂs%; ] %gprowde financial assistance for the construction,
acquisition, ,crehablhtatlor?%lmprovemen %‘di maintenance of facilities for others in its
BeneﬁtedWTem%%?@S emf‘ 1C¢° LDC powers include the ab111ty to: (i) disseminate

(111) to borrow money and to issue negot1able bonds, notes
ﬁare empowered to sell, lease, mortgage or otherwise dispose
Aany real or personal property or any interest therein.

and other obl%g ions. LD

of or encumber fa:

»
A copy of this speci}eﬁ“[egislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF.cgi?QUERYTYPE=LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=$$NPC14113S@TXNPC01411+&LIST=LAW+&BROWSER=EXPLORER+&TO
KEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIEW

11. Description of the Authority and its Board Structure:

1) Names of Committees and Committee Members:




The ECIDA and its affiliates operate several committees as outlined on the ECIDA
website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-board-committees. Attachment 6 outlines
the committee members.

ii) Lists of Board Meetings & Attendance:
A list of the various Board meetings and Board attendance is outlined on Attachment 7.

iii) Description of major authority units. subsidiaries:
The ECIDA and its affiliates do not have any subsidiaries.

iv) Number of Employees:
The ECIDA had 18 full-time employees during 2024.

v) Organizational Chart:
The ECIDA’ orgamzatlonal chart is poste,ﬁ n

), website at:
%20-

%20as%700f" 20June%202019 pdf

12. Bylaws:

W t arm ILEC continued its redevelopment work at
Renalssance Co erce Park w:t the sale ofia parcel to Sucro Sourcing, who plans to
build a new wareho%se%on gh 1te in 20%§ptﬁ Additionally, Uniland Development

Aheir  seq "ustnal warehouse, Ioglstlcs and light

¥

manufacturmg Spa e with 60%%:
jobs on nithe site. On tfffe honzgﬁé sth development of a light manufacturing space just
south"of the Dona St. e%%?iswn h ed by J.G. Petrucci Company, Inc. who was chosen
as the desipnated develg?‘%r forfthe project through an RFP process late in 2024.
Infrastructurework at the site remains a top priority for redevelopment. In 2024 a new
water and sewer line wasicompleted on the north end of the property and design and
engineering contlﬁued for two new roads (Odell St. and Ridge Rd.). Significant design
and engineering for 1 he WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project was also completed, which
will open up a 40-acre parcel for redevelopment on the site. The WYE Yard project
received a grant from New York State for $1,750,000 to help with the construction phase
of the project slated for 2025.

The ILDC’s work on the redevelopment of the Erie County Agribusiness Park entered a
new stage in 2024 with the completion and approval of the site’s master plan and Generic
Environmental Impact Statement. Upon completion of the master plan the ILDC began
infrastructure work on the site with the hiring of LiRo Engineers to conduct the design
and engineering of the access road project for the property, including the demolition of

-10-



three small metal buildings on the site to make way for the road. The ILDC also started
the marketing of the property by designing and integrating a logo for the park.

The RDC continued to operate two revolving loan funds (RLFs) in 2024, providing
favorable terms to businesses who may not qualify for traditional lending from banks. By
the end of 2024, the funds available for lending from the RLFs accelerated to
approximately $6,000,000, primarily due to several larger loans paying off early. During
2024, the RDC officially introduced its line of credit (LOC) product to businesses located
in Erie County and approved one LOC to a minority contractor. Due to the closure of the
Sumitomo Rubber Company that caused over 1,500 employees to be displaced, the RDC
Board approved a new loan program that offers special lendingiterms to assist former
Sumitomo employees with low-cost capital to start their ow

$314,000,000 expected. 2 of these projects opted inth
(EIP) PILOT, which is designed to increase MWBE cont
projects that receive ECIDA PILOT benefits

14. Four-Year Financial Plan:

oards of ‘Directors conducted a Board Performance
Evaluation in 2024%and forw};&_ d the resulfs to the Authorities Budget Office. The
surveys are not subjecfg disclosure under artick;fgz"fsix of Public Officers Law.

The audited financial statements for the ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC outline any material
pending litigation. The audited financial statements are posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports.

-11-



Certification Pursuant to Section 2800(3) of the Public Authorities Law

Pursuant to Section 2800 (3) of the Public Authorities Law, each of the undersigned
officers of Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation, and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation does hereby certify with respect to the annual financial report
of the Corporation (the “Annual Financial Report”) posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports that based on the officer’s
knowledge:

1. The information provided in the Annual Financial R port is a?:curate, correct and

does not contain any untrue statement of material

2. Does not omit any material fact which, itted, would ¢
statements contained in the Annual Finang¢ia Report to be mlglé%dlng in light of
the circumstances under which such S‘L‘a

3. Fairly presents in all material respects the
operations of the Corporation as of, and
financial statements.

John Cappellino
President & CEO

Mollie Pre

-12-



Attachment 1

2024 Mission Statement and Performance Measures with Results

is included elsewhere in this package and not repeated to reduce size.

-13-



ECIDA Bonds ATTACHMENT 2

Bond
Maturity

Interest Bond/Loan
Rate Number

Year End Balance
2024

Year Start
Balance 2024

Principal Paid 2024

Trustee Bond Amount

ProjectName

New York
Housing Finance
2360 |Agency 2009 Shoreline Apartments LLC $9,000,000| $ 1,044,869 | § 989,912 | § 54,957 |10.055 5003 11/30/41
Bank of New Our Lady of Victory Renaissance
2516 York Melion Corporation $11,860,000/ $ 6,275,000 | $ 5,715,000 | § 560,000 |Variable 4/1/32
2591 |M&T Bank Canisius High School $22,250,000| $ 9,475,000 | $ 8,765,000 | § 710,000 |var 1012768 2/1/38
Joint Schools Construction Board
10194 |M&T Bank 2013 Refund of 2009A Bonds $62,540,000/ $ 59,935,000 | § - 1% 59,935,000 |var 254 5/1/28
Joint Schools Construction Board
(Refund of 2007A & 2008A
10291 |M&T Bank bonds) - Series 2015A $236,975,000| $ 120,385,000 |.§ 98,785,000 | $ 21,600,000 |var. H378 2029

Joint Schools Construction Board
Series 2016A (Refund of 2009A

10342 |M&T Bank Bonds) $133,580,000| $ 84,405,000 | $ 67,725,000 | $ 16,680,000 |2.17 118534-000 2031
Zions CPC7068801,
10404 |Bancorporation |Marina Vista $13,300,000| $ 12,571,935 | $ 12,368,666 | $ 203,268 |fixed 7916 111437
U.S. Bank
National Related Affordable/Elmwood 1.846%,
10504 |Association Square Apartments $8,590,000( $ 8,534,149.62 | § 8,396,281 | § 137,869 |Fixed 234450000 2038
Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the
10621 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo -2021 series $109,135,000| $ 95,955,000 | § 80,320,000 | § 15,635,000 |Fixed 21A & 21B 2032

Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the

10730|M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2022 series $71,150,000/ $ 51,945,000 | § 33,225,000 | § 18,720,000 |Fixed 156152-000 2026
Huntington OAHS Tonawanda TC, LLC Account number
10758 |National Bank {Tonawanda Towers) $ 11,090,000 | $ 11,090,000 | $ 11,090,000 | $ - |Fixed 5082001861 10/1/2062
Wilmington Trust
National Ellicott Park Townhomes
10764 |Association Community Partners, LP $33,000,000/$ 32,935,000 | $ 32,765,000 | $ 170,000 |5.45% fixd 161477-000 4/1/12067
U.S. Bank 248174000
National Westchester Park Perservation
10809 |Association LP $22,310,000/ $ 22,310,000 | § 22,200,000 | $ 110,000 [4.23% fix 2041
Joint Schools Construction
Board/City School District of the
10813 |M&T Bank City of Buffalo - 2023A $57,270,000/ $ 57,270,000 | § 57,270,000 | § - |5.0% fixeqd166740-000 2028

$ 674,130,953 |§ 439,614,859

-14-



ILDC Bonds

ATTACHMENT 2

i |
ProjectName Jobs {Bond Ampunt ;;:; figELEslance Year End Balance 2024; Principal Paid 2024 ; :;\;:est Loan Number
2758 |UMB Bank Enterprise Charter School Ne $7,345,000.00 $5,895,000.00 $5,715,000.00 $180,000.00 7.5 1032851
Cantalician Center for Learning-
10111 |M&T Bank Series A No $9,525,000 $4.440.000 $3.955.833.00, $484,167.00 |var. 1034105
e Bank of New
10278 |York Mellon Catholic Health System No $93,800,000 $68,500,000.00 $63,795,000.00 $4,705,000.00 5
The Bank of New |[Orchard Park CCRC, Inc. a/k/a
10290{York Mellon Fox Run No $44,490,000 $34,055,000 $32,485,000.00 $1,570,000.00 {1-5% ORCHRDPARK15
Canisius College of Buffalo, Bank
New York - Refund of 2004- Purchase
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Rate:
10296 |M&T Bank 2015A No $30,760,000.00 $18,865,000.00 $17,865,000.00 $1,000,000.00 [5.1780% 3233822
Canisius College of Buffalo, |Bank
New York - Refund of 2004- Purchase
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series Rate:
10296 |M&T Bank 20158 No $16.195.000.00 $16,195.000.00 $16,195,000.00 $0.00 |5.2756% 3233830
10338 |M&T Bank 854 Ellicott Strest, LLC No $44,328,500 $39,055,046.90 $38,054,669.90 $1,000,377.00 2.95|99-6641368-3
seres A -
3.875% &
5.00%
Series B-  [123350-000 & 123351-
10371 |M&T Bank Tapestry Charter School No $33,800,000.00 $31,645,000.00 $31,115,000.00 $530,000.00 {6.00 % 000
Varies:
Charter School for Applied 4.25%-
10375 |U.8. Bank Technologies No $22.995.000.00 $17.285,000.00 $16,180,000.00 $1,105,000.00 |5.00% 220612000
Globa!l Concepts Charter
10399 |Wilmington Trust |{School No $6,185,000.00 $5,045,000.00 $4,785,000.00 $260.000.00 |4 & 5% 131876-000
10470|U.8. Bank D'Youville College No $48,205,000.00 $45,615,000.00 $44,675,000.00 $940,000.00 [Variable 234594000
Key Government  |134 High Strest, LLC, Series
10713 |Finance, Inc. 2022 $19,635,847.21 $18,269,755.69 $17,494,290.11 $775,465.58 2.92% 2002880080
D'Youvilie
10627 |University No $44 935 000.00 $44,935.000.00 8.38%
$ 422,299,347.21 | $ 304,864,802.59 | $ 337,249,793.01

-15-



The following employees had a base salary greater than $100,000 in 2024:

Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Compensation Schedule
Year Ended: December 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 3

Performance Payroll
Name _ Title Salary Compensation Taxes* Benefits Total
John Cappellino President & CEO 205,000 - 13,762 43,232 261,994
Elizabeth O'Keefe Vice President - Operations 124,800 - 9,883 24650 | $ 159,333
Mollie Profic Vice President & CFO 120,229 - 9,534 40,941 170,704
Grant Lesswing Director of Business Development 111,095 - 8,835 31,788 | § 151,718

* Represents Employer's Share of FICA taxes (Social Security & Medicare) & NYS Unemployment Insurance taxes

-16-




051 Jo 21 8bey

Jeoly
|eoueul
BI°
jJuapjsay,
3lloN *au0d |
..... suojjel {
jJuspisey
X N\ _UWegez|3 ‘ajae).0
W
wdojora
ssauls
b 30 101004 jueis) ‘Bumsse
v 039
X Juapisaldi  wyop ‘ouljaddes
eouBINsY R A
| ar | spaed upaiy |
sjysuequaufojdwsy asueysiss juspuad UBMO|| sueot  gjesodioysdiysiaquayy. save pasnu abeyoe,j
deyi0asay) Jo aUONl  Jeap-pn ...o:.:.“_ /esnods| Bujsno co_untcna:a.._f oy Jeuossa 30 es) qQn|3  Jog Jewde souBseag| opEL owe
s10j081)
X 40 preog) weoeA
S10}084)
X 10 pleo] . yiouuey ‘Booyos
: s10pa4 )
A - 10 pieogliaydojsuyy ‘uojued:
_ si0pal
X 10 pIeC B “2489U0|04):
x— S10)841 . i
- 10 paeo! ueLy ‘yemop)
: 34090l
X 40 pieo uua)o ‘sileN
‘@sueInsuj
~ siyeueq | o _ spied jpasn
| e oasay) juswfojdw wo:&m_m«.ﬂ iusspusdagaouemoy sueo ejesodiog) sdpysiaqu eoT pasnuf| ume_u-n_ L.
i L% JO BUQN| seap-n uoin fiesnods) Buisnaiuonepcdsu L 23.1_ leuosiag j0 8sq)’ anid) Jod wewhed  eoueioAes]| ol awen
V/N 8leq paypie) B
a3LUNENSNN SIS P202/LE/2| ‘Butpul Jea) jeos)y
§¢02/21/0 ‘sjeg uny

foueby wawdopaeg ferisnpuj fjunog eug Jog podsy fenuuy

LM O BAS AR L LI s _._W;.::.__..J._ PR RS Tt 8 F N Lt 1Mt

ST Vel Py

Y€ ININHOYLLY

-17-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation
Year Ended: December 31, 2024

ATTACHMENT 4

Projected  Net Jobs
Year2 Projectedto Lease Project Tax Exempt
Company Jobs be Created Amount Bond Amount  Date Approved
1 Upstate Niagara Cooperative, Inc. 370 130 $ 150,000,000 9/25/2024
2 3200 Clinton Street, LLC 55 55 46,530,000 8/28/2024
3 Laborers Way 1* 37 37 $ 45,290,000 9/25/2024
4 BPS Commissary Kitchen* 41 8 34,135,084 3/27/2024
5 SL Evans 0 0 20,769,000 3/27/2024
6 Pfannenberg, Inc. 147 24 11,500,000 12/18/2024
7 Hanes Supply, Inc. 100 13 6,000,000 10/23/2024
Total: 749 266 $ 314,224,084 $ -

*Indicates an amendatory project.

-18-



ATTACHMENT 4A

Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation {Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2024

Company Loan Amgunt Date Closed
1 Great British Pantry, LLC S 300,000 1/24/2024
2 Tundra Transport, LLC 230,000 1/24/2024
3 Angola Theater, Inc. 150,000 12/17/2024
4 Blue Eyed Baker, LLC ‘ 150,000  6/21/2024
5 Draghi Burgos Contruction, LLC* 100,000 6/25/2024
6 Gilded Buffalo, LLC 50,000 12/6/2024
Total S 980,000

*Indicates line of credit.

-19-



ATTACHMENT 4B

Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2024

Company Loan Amount Date Closed
1 Todd Rosser d/b/a Rosser's Ridge Maple & More S 35,000 3/6/2024

Total § 35,000

-20-



"a|qejieae y ‘lesterdde 1o (sjqeoldde ) sjel uopezyenba xe) Joj pajsnipe) onjea passasse Uo paseq ,
‘diys1sumo |e1yauaq Jeal, sey yaiD3 syl a1aym asoy) aJe pajussald ssiuedosd ay )
'S)4aUaq JOYHO 40 Xe)} ulepad K9AUOD 0} JAPIO U] AN [eDIuYs) SeyY YOI syl ydaiym u; sanuadold Jo spaspuny sy} sapnjoxa Bunsi) anoge ay) Jeuy sjou aseald

pied 92ud aseyoing 19])9S JO SSaIppY ¢ AweN fpadoad jo Auadoud jo uonduasag |ng Ausdoud Jo uonesoT pue ssaippy JaumQ
jo s1EQ AW
pejewnsy
*$20Z Bupnp pasnboe sem 1ey; Auadoid [ess jle jo Buns) e s1 Bumo)jo} 9yt "¢ sjqe).
1
006'8¥5% ¥eoz/LLEL PELEE 14 'Salqe) |eso) 000'66¢ $ (01 19012g) pue| Jueoen 10 SOIOE 86 6 812 AN "BULEMENOET ‘OIdUIN) BINQUEH E0EZ JO Hed el 1—
¥0Z) 81S ‘pAIg U0 8p @ouod 0Z0Z J.
OT1 ‘AN djejs3 [eay o1Ing
FPRNSSIE NS do=isa | Jesiyaing J0SEmPY g SUIEN, | ZeRald j0 Ruadoid Jo uopdjiasag (ing Kiiedod Jo UORE3O PUE S52IPPY Um0
AN
pajewns3

S INJWHOVLLY

"p20z Buunp Jo pasodsip sem jeyy Auadord [e81 jje pue (000°'s$ JO SsaaX5 Ul (LAINL,) 3N[EA 1ew ey e ypm) Apadoid [euosiad o Bunsy e si 6

UIMOJI0) 8yl "¢ alqel

Leg'ozl’l ¢ BuIPIING *})'S 89E'61/M PUR| JUBORA JO SRIJE LG'ZY) 81ZrL AN ‘Buuemejoe] ‘ayiduin) BinqueH goez o071
905'€0. SDUIp|iNg BI2J3WWOD /M PUB JO S3IJL 66'LEZ 9007} AN ‘Sueaj ‘peoy Jsjua sueaj uap3 9zG| ola|}
000'0Z PuE| Juesep 0Slyl AN 'Bpuemeuc) ‘peoy J9MY GHiE oa71
£€0'268'} Aliioey 8o)0 Jo0) asenbs £0g'z) €027 AN ‘Ofelng ‘Jaaig assauag gyl vaio3
000'sL2'L $ asnoyasem [eIJBWWOD gLekl AN vaio3a
‘euuemeyoe] ‘ayiduin] BinqueH "AA'N - 19jua)) apel Aemajes
SAuadoid Auadoid jo uonduiasag In3 Auadoid Jo uoneso pue ssaippy 19UMQ
10 AINd
pajewys3

'P20Z 'L Jaquadaq Je sejellule si pue Y103 2Y) Aq paumo Auedoid [esi |l jo Bunsy e | Gumolioy YL *| sjqel

¥Z0Z ‘L€ 19qWwadaQ :poapug Jesp
uoday Apadouy

Aousby juswdojanaq jeiysnpuj A3unoy aug



|

«JojAe] |aeyoin

143

*8IDINZS |y

-E|

xSUaydals uone

1B

Y3

uojueds saydoisuy)

d3

143

*9181S plAeg

-E|

LYNws eaney

143

143

143

3

2130495 Yiauuay

E|

L E|

24e3U0|0d e

143

143

JeMOopN uelg

43

143

43

SIfIaN uus|9

43

«A3UBId pireg

L E|

43

43

UNQIN epualg

d3

Asupniend uesns “ig

- E|

143

-E|

zysdil pJeyanry

L E|

«diingey Aouey

143

ediny ueug

E|

+INj8u| Aodaug

143

193

XnH-uosuyor esA]

143

Jnowjto uyor "uoy

|

x+1NOPUED BI33(3Yy

J9y3e|jes simeq

E|

143

143

«Sueaj Aeyoez

43

43

J98uiwwy ydasor

143

Sulawwy sewoyy

143

«AsuuoHaq uosi|y

M3

djhog »ouied

d3

an|g e

3

43

*YUM23ag Auuad

43

x SOUAeg 'y

43

subjseq [ldy

143

LSouleg sewoy|

E|

43

110qqy astuaqg

HO

-9 ueoy ueo

Mijod

Suneujwion

upny
g 2dueul4

uojzesuadwor

9JUBUIBNOD)

3AINJaX3

IWenN

94 Juswiydelly

2Q=i Oay=Y ‘vaI1d3 =3 :Aay

(vZ/Te/cT Jo 5v)

seapiwwio) pieog 341i/2a4/van3

-22-



S19qWaW pJeog-uop ,

o3 +«SPOOM 2240y
143 FE] *USGI|ZUAN WEI[|IM
Ho upny
-3}IM Ueo ueo Moijod SuneuiwoNn | g 3dsueury | uonesuadwo) 2Jueusdnon QAIINIAXT awen
2Q7I=) 2aY=Y ‘vaAID3 =3 :Aay
(vZ/TE/TT JO SY)
94 JUdURpeny s99jiwwo) pieog Ja1i/OQd/vain3

-23-



X X X X X X alINgoY Bpuaig
Vve0Z/LE/G PUT Wi x x UeMODI| Bsiueq
X X X X x X “1f usdr preyory
X X b 4 X X ediny usug "uoH
X X X X uosuyor eA)
V20Z/S/L :pug wie) X UOSUYOf PIEMOH “UOH
PZOT/LE/TLPUT Wle] X X X X saydnH 19eyoIN
veoz/Lercl pul x X x Inowi9 uyor "uoH
wue) ‘b20Z/G2/6 suIBeg wis]
X Jaysenes amoq
X x X X x JaBuiwwz ydesor “uoq
¥#202/82/8 uiBag unaj X 3 X Buiewiw sewoy|
Apsyo(Q sawel
¥¢0T/PL/0L :puj ue] X UMOIg UOJAG “UOH
¥202/92/9 :uiBag uus| | X X X ajfog Jouied
X X X X X 8Nyjg M4ely 'AaY
X X X X X X noqqy asiuag
: _ vuswz | verezior | Bujieo,d 10N [BURGSW SN | vz/62/5 | ve/Lzie | BunseioN [ Aunesidon o0y oau
SEI0N : %q | 110 It anr unr znt. 1 ges uer oquiepy pieog
Y20Z/LE/L (PUT Wlay F3 X 2N|INA INBg
X X x X X x X 2380Y0S Yylauuay
‘7202 4 X I3 uoueag Jaydoisuyo ‘uoH
‘Gl 19q0IQ U0 10Aely WPRU|
Bunuoseqnun pamuss pue
‘¥20Z ‘z Menuer uo juspiseid
1I9UNoY peyos)a sem uojueog
“UoH * idag ule|
X x X x ZIB2UO|0d B "LOH
$202/1/1 uiBeg wie] | X X x x X 3 NEMON UBLIE "UOH
x X X x x x x SIJ9N LU "UoH
x X x X X X X a1Nao W Bpualg
PZ0Z/LE/S ‘pug Wiay X X UBMOSOW asiUsq
x X X X X X X “Ar zyisdi preyoaty
x x X X X x ediny| ueng "uoH
X x x X uasuyor eah]
¥20¢/G/L -pu3 wis) X X LOSULOf PIBMOH "UCH
PZOT/LE/CLPUT W) X x X X saysnH 1eBYDI
vZoT/Le/TL :pul X x X inowii9 uyor ‘uoH
wis| ‘y20z/5e/6 uifeg uuay
X Jsysenes amoqQ
x X X 3 3 seduiuwz ydesof ‘uoy
¥202/82/8 ‘uidag uua) X X X Buniewwg sewoy)
Ausyoq sawer|
¥20T/¥L/0) ‘pu3 wiB| X X UMOIg LoIAG "UOH
¥202/92/9 :uj3ag wis)| X x X X o1fog doined
x X X X X X anig e 'AsY
X X X X noqqy aswag
| vamwz UROSWON |  PE/EL/0L BupesiioN | vziszis | [Bunesiion vaiod
~ %ea | AN | w0 T wnr | d ] Joquion
Q3ANILLY =X
L} wswyeny AS17 ONILLIIN HITWIW aQ¥Y09 SALVIIEHEY ANV YaID3 v20Z

-24-



Y20Z/51/0| uideq wisy| X X uojueos saydosuyD "uoH
X x ZIEDUO)Od B "UOH
X X X X X X zusdr] pieyory
¥Z0Z/LE/CL puUl X X X 1nownio uyor ‘uoH
wue| {pzoz/Sz/6 uideg wie)
YZ02/S/L ‘pUg Wia X X x UOSUYOf PIBMOH "UOH
X X X X X X X apsen jelueq
PTOZ/YL/0L -pU3 WIS X x uma.ig UolAg ‘uoH
PTOT/LE/ZLPUF LIS X upjseg 11idy "uoH
X X X X noqqy asiusqg

ung T

UiE u:.:wmzwz. _ beroz/iL
j 200 | AN

| 2upesiy oN

veioere | veetis
—_ - —

[EM T

vEILEiE | vz i aai|
= "

19quio)y

v20Z/LE/L puz uliay

oneynAINed
x X x x X x Z120108 Liauuey|
‘20T 3 X uojueas saydoysuys "uoq
‘Gl 199013Q) UC Johey LWau|
Bunuooaqnun peales pue
‘pZ0Z 'z Aenuer uo Juapiseld
119UNDYD Pe)Oa|d SEM UOJUBDS
UOH " :uifoq ua |
x x x 21B0U0)0d Y4B} 'UOH
“Y20Z/L/1 (uBag uua | X X X X X 3}EMON uBlLig "uoH
X X X X X X SieN Uu9g "uoH
| versier | Bupssuon [ yz/ez/ol |Punceuion |Bupeelon | ¥z/62/5 Buneely oN | Bunesi oN oqy oay
n.nnea. seQ . AON 1w | uep | Aew - awd | owep i 18qWolY ._u.__u.nn_
G3ANILLY = X

L## Wswyreny 1517 ONILIIN YITWIW QYVO1 SALVITIAdY ANY vaId3 v20T

-25-



(44

jo | abed

imeT adueuld siels 8y Jo (6)l-6€1
UOH2RS Yi|M SDLIEPIODIE Uf ‘PELINGI0 SABY SUCHEIOIA BJOYM SBOUB)SL U) Suonoues asodu o} pue ‘Jusweinooid

SOA e Buunp joejuoo sgissiuadwl jo suonebale ajebisaAu) pue malaal o} ssaooid e arey Auoyiny sy) seoQ 6
£}0ejU0D ajqissiwiadwl Siy) JO apew pIodal B SEM 'SBA §| ‘eg
ime]
aoueUld 91elS aU) Jo (0L)I-6E 1 UOHIIS YIM SoUEPIODDE U ‘polad Buiodss ay) Buunp juawwainoosd sy aouanju|
ON 0} pajdwsje Jo Juswainoosd e Buunp J0EU0D Slgissiwadun pey JopusA B Jely; sulwislep Auoyiny syl pia ‘g
&0V BuifgqoT Juswiaindold ay 1, ‘meT aoueuld 0jelS ay) JO (B)(Z)-6E | UON0aS UM 9OUEPIOJDE
S9A | U ‘juswainooid oyjoads € Uo JoRJUOD PaZUOYNE BU} S8 BAIaS 0) suosiad Jo uosied e ajeubisap Auoyiny auy pig i
¢S)oesuoa juawainsold o) suojesyioads 1o ‘sjuawnaop piq ‘sjesodosd
SOA J0 uoeNDijos s ul suoliqiyo.d pue seijjod Juawainooid syl jo Alewwns e ajeIodiodu; Auoyiny ay) seoq ‘9
SOA éuswwaaibe uoisn|joo-uou & ubis o) s1appiq eAoedsoid asinbas Auoyiny ay) ssoq ‘g
ON {seseyaind ssauysng Jojpue |aAel) Joj seakojdwe o} speo jpald ubisse Ajuoyiny ay) s30g v
oN £sauliepinb juawainoold ey) o) suojdesxa Joy mojje Ajuoyiny au) seoq K>
SOA {pseog ay} Aq panoidde pue ‘papasu || papusiie ‘A|lenuue pamajasl seulepinb juawainsold ay) ey Z
saiojjod-aje1odioa-sn-jnogqeuod Auepos mmmy/:sdny SOA ¢saulepinb juswainooid aaey Auoyiny ay) saoq L
(a1qesyddy 31} TuN asuodsay uopsanp

VIN : @jeq paymie)
QaLLNGNSNN -snjelg
§202/61/20 9jeq uny

U] RUEIEY R

¥20Z/L/21 :BuIpuUZ Jea, jedstd

Kouaby Juswdojereq [ewisnpuj Ajunon aug 1oy Loday JUSWSIND0IY

bl it AR LHLAp b Ll b g L IWTITRES RS

BRLPLCS RGN by = e
B PR

8 INFWHOVLLY

-26-



ZZ jo Z ebey

junowy ay uey)

uopdugsag $837 S| anjep Joyse

Buisizeape ejpaw [e1oos pue oipel |e90] pajsebie | JuswRIND0Ig lied ayy Aym ujejdxy
Jea) [easiq

S9jelS peliun Aguno 05'Z16'88$ o4 papuadx3 junowy
uojbay/asuinoig junowy

¥ shid anjeA jexley Jey

[T44 4% 9po) [ejsod djeq pu3z

AN aqels 8jeq piemy

Olv44ng a1 18P0 9SBYANGHUBWSINI0IH JOBHUOCT UON $53904d plemy

00Z oNng Zouin ssalppy SB0IAIBS [BUOISS0I JOUID juswainaoid jo adAy

Aemyued ajelodio) 00s Lauf] ssaippy *ou] ‘suonelad( Asepny SWeN JOpuap 4
junouwy ey) ueyy

uopduasag $597 S| anjep Joyde

sajepdn Asans Juswifojdws ‘eoueuRiUiBW BISGOM jusweinaodyd aed ay3 Aym ujejdxy
JeaA [edsiy

sojelg pajun Agunog 05'286°L1$ JoJ papuadx3 junowy
uojbay/esujaold 05°286°L1LS junowy

¥ snid AN[EA J9¥JIEW Jied

0sivl apo) |ejsod ajeq pug

AN ajels 010¢/12/6 ajeq piemy

VANVYMVYNOL 19 pig sAadwos) - joenuon) Ajuoyiny $5090.d piemy

Zou| ssalppy Hoddng 10 uswdojpasgBunnsucy - ABojouyos | jJuswiainooud jo adA|

3AuQ uepuays /9 jaulq ssaippy woo'9sd 09¢ SWeN Jopusp ‘)

-27-

VIN - 81eq payiued
Q3LLINGNSNN sniejg
§202/61/20 9leq uny

¥202/L€/2) :Buipug Jea [eosiy

Koueby Juswdojensq [euisnpu) Alunog sug 10y Hoday Juewainsolg

Lldsr 3t AT LPCOELAILLAI A AAR] T 0D B I bl ad g S b PR PO hgr 0 PO f
S ol el VA



¢z jo ¢ ebey

junowy ayj uey;
uopduosag $591 S| anjeA J9MIElN

sanp diyssequaw pue diysiosuods [enuuy juawainosoid Jed ayy Aym ujejdxy
1e3 ) jedsi]y

sajelg pajiun Aiunoy 00'000'6$ lo4 papuadxz junowy

uojfoy/esulrold junowy

¥ shid anjeA JoNJel Jed

3744 8poY [ejsod ajeq puz

AN aers 8jeq plemy

01va4ng Ao 19PJ0 35BYIINGAUBWAIND0I] JORIUOD UDN $53901d plemy

Z8u ssasppy PEINTe} juawaindolg jo adA

SNUBAY PUB|YLON £89 L8ulT SSeJppy 8ouel|ly buumpoejnuely eiebeiy ojeyng aweN JOpuap b

junowy ayj ueyy

sdiyssosuods Juaas uopduasag $S97 S| anjeA e

pue uopeojignd ssauisng Apjaem |eao] uj subledwes 6 aApe pajabie) justudInNI0id Jieq ay) Aym ujejdxg
lea) feasiy

Selejs papun Aunogp 00°50L'0¢$ Jo4 papuadx3 junowy

uojbay/aoujroid unowy

¥ shid anfeA jexJeR Jieq

£02YL 3po) [eysod ajed pug

AN ajelg 3jeq piemy

01vd4d4dnga A1 13pI0 8SBY3ING/AUBWAINI0I JORIUOT) UON $59201d plemy

gyl ssalppy

R_UIo

JUSWaAIND0IY Jo adA]

}98.48 VBN 69

jauiq ssaippy

)si14 sseuisng ojeyng

awlep Jopuap €

V/N - 8jeq payned
Q3 LLINGNSNN snelg
§202/61/20 ‘@jeq uny

Lldaed g Ay

¥Z0z/LE/21 ‘Bulpug Jea, |easiy

Kouaby Juswdojeraq Jeuisnpul Ajunog aug oy uodsy Juswainoold

(RS TS JRW NS NN N & NN WS

-28-



ZZ Jo v obeyd

Jjunowy ayj ueyy

uopduosag $S97 S| INJEA JaNenN

sBuIssoso peodjies snouea je sjustuaaciduwl |e)ides JUBWIBIND0IY sleq ayy Aym ujejdxgy
Jea) [edsiq

S3JelS pajun Aunop 10'85¥'201L$ 104 papuedxg Junowy
uojBey/eoujrold unowy

¥ Shid an[eA jaxJey ey

L50¥L 3poY |ejsod 9jeq pug

AN ajelg ajeq piemy

N3Q3 Ao 1aplO 9SEYIING/JUSLIBIND0Id J0BIJUOS UON $Sa204d plemy

Zeuy] ssauppy ssijddng/sagipowwo) JUsWaIN0I §0 adAy

1984)3 jodaQg 0098 |ouf ssaippy peoljiey uiaynog ojeyng 3WeN JIopusp K:)
unowy sy uey

uopduosag $501 S| onjeA JoxJel

suopeysifal uase ‘diysisquisw [enuue JusLissassy 3 10} diysiosuodg jusuIdINgoIg Jey ayy Aym ugejdxg
183 jessiq

S9Je)S pajun Anunop 00'668'21$ Jo4 papuadx3 junowy
uojbayy/eosuiroid unowy

¥ snid aN[eA J9xJe| Jied

£0ehL 8pa) |eysod ajeq pug

AN ajels 8jeq plemy

ov44ng 10 19pJO 9SBUDING/JUBWBINI0IH JOBAUOT) UON $S320.d piemy

Zou| ssaippy 1BYI0 JuswWaINo04g Jo adAy

yeans Auad 61 Leui ssalppy diysseuped esebeln ojeyng BWEN JOPUaA ‘G

-29_

V/N : ejeq peynied
A3 1L LINGNSNN sneg
G20e/6L/z0 :9jeq uny

¥20Z/1€/2) ‘Buipu] sea ) feasiy

Aoueby juswdojens( [ewisnpul Aiunog aug 1o} Wodsy JuswaInsold

Lidsr it AR LREIRLEILLLMEALRN] TOLL Rt hs g Skl ] 440

STXINS



ZZ jo g abed

N unowy ayj ueyy
uopdpasaqg $897 1 anjep JouepN

diysiosuods jusas ‘laued AIOSIADY [ o} poddng jusweIN0ld 1e4 ay) Aum upejdxgy
JedA [easiy

S9JEIS pajun Anunop 00°000'9Z$ Jo4 papuedx3 junouily

uojBey/esulaoid unowy

¥ shid anjeA 19Je Jied

€0l 3po |eysod ajeqg pug

AN aje)s ajeq piemy

o1v44ng Ao 18pIQ 9SEYIINGAUAWAINI0Id JORIUOD UON $5990id piemy

Z9uy ssalppy 1BYO jJuswaInsold jo adAL

10ang 99sauag G| Jeu| ssaippy anfea uequn ojeyng JWEN JOPUIA 8

junowy ayj uey

uopdpasaqg $S97 S anjeA e

SAjelIu 80B|d 10} a0eY S,0[eyng 1o} Yoddng juswaindolg 1jed ay} Aym ujejdxgy
183\ [easly

S8Rl pajun Aijunop 00°000'00L$ 404 pepuedx3 junowy
uojBay/esujaold junowy

¥ shid SN{eA jodiel Jied

£02hL 3apoy |eysod ajeq pu3g

AN ajels ajeq piemy

Ovddng Th) 18pIQ 9sey2INdAUBWRIN0.d JOBIUOD UON $S390.d plemy

Or suUNg Zaul ssaippy Y0 JudWIAIND0I Jo adAL
10058 lied g6 Laul ssaippy uoneiodiod juswdojaaa(g uequn ojeung SWepN JOpusp 'L

V/N - 8jeq peyipad
Q3LLINGNSNN Smels
§202/61/120 jeg uny

b g AN

¥20Z/LE/Z) :Bupuz Jes |eosiy

Aoueby juawdojeaeq |emisnpu] Alunog sug Joj podey JUsWaINd0.g

LALOB bbbl bl DALy pdt s Bas o) Saad g instg]i vy

L= M e |

= B B 5 e |

o=

-30-



gcio

9 abed

“ed

junowy ay) uey

8213LLLOY) SOUBSSIEUIY JB PIBA OO0 94} UC UOHONISUDIaI PUB PIEA uopdussag $S97 S] an|eA e
JAM JoULI0j 3} LO |ied JO JO jeAowal 10} saaines Buuesuibua pue ubisag JUDWLRINDI0IY Jiedq ayy Aym urejdxgy
Jea, jeasiy

SIEIS paNun Anunog §6°005°0LES Jo4 papuadxg junowy

uoibey/asuinosd 00°6S1'8.L5$ junowy

¥ shid 3NjeA J9)Je Jieq

£0¢rl 8po) jejsod ajeq puz

AN ajels £202/52/0) ajeq plemy

O7v44ng A0 pig aAedwo? - j1oenuo) Ajloyny $S9204d piemy

ZaulT ssalppy saoaeg Buynsuon juswainaould jo adA

001 8yng Jeag W3 |yl Lault ssauppy sisau|buz $90 dWeN Jopusp ‘0L

junowy ayj ueyj

HB S2IBWIIOY SoUBSSIEUDY JB SUOISUSIXD SUl| 13JEM PUB Jomas uonduasaqg $597 S| onjep JaIel
Asejues oyjgnd Joj sediuss ubisap pue [eioueuy ‘[BJUSWUOIAUD ‘Buiuueld jusweinaoigd ey ayy Aym ujejdxg
189 A [easid

Sojelg paun Ayunop revelsis Jod papuadx3 junowy

uoibay/edujacid 08'20S'Sv2$ junowy

¥ snid anjeA e Jied

€0yl apo) |ejsod ajeq pu3g

AN AeIs 1202/8/E ajeq piemy

0v4dng A Pig sAnedwog - pejue) Auoyiny $§8204d piemy

ZoulT ssauppy seatueg Buginsuo) JusWIALINI0L Jo adAY

001 8INng ‘19945 W3 i)

18Ul ssaippy

s19uibug §%5

SWEN JOPUSA ‘6

VIN : @)eqg peyiad
a3aLLINGNSNN 'snes
§202/6L/20 ‘eleq uny

Y202/ €121 :BuIpu] Jes, |edsiy

Kouaby Juswdojeraq |episnpuj AUNOY 81T 10} Woday JswaINo0Id

S e e e L N R o i e B e W TR LR L =TS LA ]

Sl el Py

-31-



2z jo } ebey

junowy sy} uey)

‘(0g'0v6‘L$) obesn/sayddns Auonduaseq $53 S} anjep 19Je

Jo1doa pue ‘(00"055'2$) sebieyd soueusjulew [enuue ajepnaoq JUSWAINI0IY ae4 ayy Aym upejdx3
1ea A jeasiq

S3)BIS pajyun Anunog 08'06t'6L$ 1o papusdxy junowy

uojboysesunoig 08°06%'SL$ junowy

¥ Shid anjeA jaxJey Jieg

oSyl @po) [eysod 820¢/4212 3jeQg pu3

AN aels £20z/2212 ajeq piemy

VYANVMYNOL A0 pig aaadwog - penuod Auoyiny $5830Jd piemy

Zaul ssadppy salddng/ssnipownuoy juewaINg0ad o adAL

Kemjied janbnad

jaul ssaippy

‘ouj 'seifiojouyds | ssauisng xed Joidod)

awep Jopuap ZL

junowy ayj uey

“Pafoid Wowaoidw (HOSE) pealjiey uleynos ofeyng o} uondisasag SS9 S| enjeA jaxie|

Paje|a) suoljpadsu) pue ‘uolelsiuipe uoNINIISUD ‘ubisap ‘Buuueid ayg JuswWIaINd0.d Jied4 sy Aym ujejdxg
JeoA [easld

Sejels pajyun Anunog L¥'GrL'v9$ 104 popuadx3 junowy

uojfay/esujroid 00°0vLL8L$ junowy

¥ shid anjeA jaxJep Jieq

£0crl apay |eysod 8jeg puz

AN 3elg €£202/6¢/L L 2jeq plemy

Olvddna A0 Pig eagadwo) - joejuo) Aoyiny §58201d piemy

Zou|1 ssaippy $aojAteg Buninsuon JUBWIND04d jo adA)

001 8yng Jeallg w3 |y

jau ssalppy

siesulbugy g0

awieN JOpuap L

V/N : 8jeq payiped
Q3LLINGNSNN snjelg
$e02/6L/20 |jeq uny

¥202/1€/2) ‘Buipuz Jeax [eosiy

Kouaby juawdojenaq |etsnpu| Ajunoy sug o) Hoday juswaindolq

Lbdah o A LBLSR L RFLLLESUD 0B EI Lt i lad = tadp]]iesn

-32-



ZZ Jo g ebey

junowy ayj ueyy

uopduasag $S917 S| anjeA JayIen

"J8ang Auad G6 Je S8o1j0 10} sann juswainaoid Jjed ay) Aym uiejdxg
JedA [eds]d

s9lels papun Ajunoy v9'£66' LS Jo pepuadx3 junowy
uojfisyjesujaoig v9'£66'v1S junowy

¥ shid anjeA joxJep Jjeg

2100} 9poY [eysod L20C/LEIL 9jeqg pu3

AN /ey 8002/L/¢ ajeq psemy

MHOA MaAN 10 pig 8ANBAWOD-UON - JoBJu0D Aoy $5920.d paemy
Zou[ ssaippy BYo juawainaoud jo adAL

BNUBAY PAIYL £€9 jauj ssalppy uoesodio) juawdoleas( sie)g andwg SWeN JoOpuap Pl

junowy ayy uey}

uopduasag $597 St aNeA J19MJe)

1S Auad 66 - aa1MBs Jaullu) jJuswasnosoid Jieq ay3 Aym upejdxg
e\ [eds]d

sajels peyun Aunop 00°009'9$ o4 papuadxg junowy
uojbay/asuiroig junoury

¥ shid anjep jaxJe Jieq

2800} 9po |ejsod 3jeq puz

AN ajelg ajeq piemy

AYOA MIN A JOBHUOD 3je)S Japun paseyaing $59004d plemy
Zaul ssaippy S2IAI8S JO Juswdinb3 uonesuNwWwoss|s | JusWaIND0d Jo adA ]

0€.8¢ Xog Od jauri ssaippy 371 18414 8)IseD umoid SUIeN Jopuap ‘el

-33-

VIN : 2jeq payiped
Q3aLLINSNSNN snieyg
§202/61/20 :|?)eq uny

¥202/1€/2) ‘Buipul Jeay (eosiy

Aoueby Juswdofansq jemsnpu) Ajunos aug Joj Hoday JUaWaiNa0)y

LLAShgset A LOLDR L WTLLLIL L) 0 L (b Gl ey Tt BRSO g e h.
7 i ﬂ R




Z2Z j0 ¢ abeyg

junowy ey} ueyj

uondyasag $597 S} an|eA jadieN

G2/L/L-PZ/1]] 10} BOUBINSUI SIS0 B SI0JRII] UdWaIN202d Jed4 ay) Aym urejdxg
Jeaj [edsid

$3jels pajun Aiunog 00'9/6°Z2$ 404 papuedx3 junowy
uojbey/asuirolg 009.6'22$ junowy

¥ shid anjeA joNJep Jje4

0£890 9po) [ejsod Veoe/LErg) 2jeg pu3g

10 ajels ¥eoz/LiL 9eq plemy

HOIMNITHO 19 pIg aAnjadwoy - Peue) Auoyiny $5990.d piemy

Zouy ssaippy 1BYO juawenanig jo adAL

SNUBAY YIIMUBIC) /8 Lourq ssaippy ‘00 92UBINSU| YOIMUBRIE) SWEN JOpusp 9}

junowy 8y} uey;

uonduosag SS9 S| aN[eA 19Iel

Juudan)q Bunaxiewy;saoaas Bunaxep JuaaINd0ig Jjed sy Aym ujejdxz
1ea) [essid

S9le)g pajun Anunod 00'056'6$ dog papuadx3 junowy
uoiboy/esulrold 00'056'6% junowy

¥ shid 00'056'6$ anjeA jayen sey

SPE9s apoJ jeysod 3jeg puj

NW ajes $20C/S/L ajeqg piemy

STvd 37010 Ao PIg eAnedwog-uoN - Jaesuod Ajuoyiny $S830id plemy
v0l aInNg ZaurT ssaippy $921M8g Buynsuon JuawaInao.d jo adAL
Aempeoig yse3 sy LaulT ssalppy 271 ‘Aouaby [sroyg uapjosy Swep Jopuap ‘Gl

V/N : 8jeQ pauiiag ¥Z0Z/LE/E) (BulpuT JeaA [BOSIy
Q3LLINGNSNN snjejg

5202/61/20 ojeq uny Aouaby juswidojaraq [euisnpu) Alunoy aug 1oy Hodey JUswaindold

S Rt SR IR TR R N TR TS N = SRS TS W S TP T R ES RIS T

—=iai ..J.\.A..!m_ q =

-34-



ZZ Jo 01 obed

junowly eyj ueyy

uondussag $§37 S| 2njeA Janie

‘saoInas |eba jJjuswaINIoLg Jje4 ay3 Aym ujejdxgy
Jea ) jeasiy

solels pajun Anunoy 80'8¥8'9¢$ o4 papuadx3 junowy
uojbay/eauiroig 89'818'9€$ junowy

¥ Shid anjeA 1Jel Jieq

012rl 9poY [ejsod L20Z/0¢/1) djeq pug

AN 2e1s 600T/2L/L 9jeQ piemy

O1vd4nd 1o pig aanadwoy - pejuo) Auoyiny §8230.1d plemy

0001 3Ing ‘1248 abueyox3 gz, Zou| ssaippy saojuag jebe jJuswRINd01d jJo adA )
abueyox3 je uppe] Lauf] ssaippy 9711d ‘yoeeg suiey SWEN JOPUBA 81
junowy ay} ueyy

uopduasag S50 S| onjep JayieN

*saafojdws yQlD3 40} esueINSU| [e)uS(q JuUBWBIND0Ig 1je4 ayy Aym ujejdxg
Jea\ [eas|d

$9jels pajyun Auno) P8'ZE0'6LS o4 papuedx3 junowy
uojbayjasujanid ¥8'ZE0'61$ junowy

¥ snid P8'ZE0'6LS anjeA jayiely Jied

10001 3poy |eysod S202/1€/) 3jeg pu3

AN g ¥20Z/Lic jeq piemy

AHOA M3IN A0 pig sABadwon-uoN - joenuo) Auoyiny $5300.d pJemy

Zaul ssaippy BYo JudWAINIoL Jo 8dA]

SpIBA UOSPNH 0L Leuyq ssaippy ue|piens) oweN Jopusp L)

VIN : ®jeQ peyiued

aaLLngnsnn
§202/61/20

snjels
:9jeq uny

LLdan % M

¥202/1€/2) Buipus tesp [easig

KausbBy juswdojaas( [euisnpul AlUNoD su3 10} Hoday JUSWAIN00IY

e AR 1 _‘ﬁ

| T

CHLIB L W RLL P ] DL et bt N a2 bbbl

-35-



ZZ 10 || sbed

junowy ayy ueyy
uopdyasag $591 S| INjeA 1R

. soofojdwa 1o} soueinsuy yjesH judwaIN20.d Jreq ayy Aym ujejdxg
1ea A jeasiy

SIS pajun Aunod 16'851'261$ 104 papuadx3 junowy
uojBey/adulroid 16'854'261$ Junowy

¥ snid 16'851'L61$ an[eA jaxle| Jied

24443 9poJ jeysod S2oz/LE/l 9jeq pu3l

AN 2120 v20e/Lie ajeq pjemy

ITUNASWVITTIIM Ay pig aaynadwo-ua - jpeqjuod Auouiny $59901d piemy

ZoulT ssalppy 1BYO juswiaindold jo edA)

dALIQ SaveT Jaqied L LS Joul ssalppy yjjeaH yuspuadapu| JWeN JOPUBA ‘0z
junowy 3y} uey;

uopdusasag $S97 S| anfeA JoxIel

so9/0jdwa Joj souelnsul YiesH juewvin20id Jjed ayy Aym utejdx3z
1eaA jess|d

S9JeIS pajun Anunog Z2E'08.°LLS 104 papuadx3 junowy
uoiboy/esulroid 2€08L°LLS junowy

¥ snid 2E08L°LLS anjeA jaxyiep sed

20evl 9poJ |ejSsod 520¢/LE/L ajeqQ pu3a

AN 22 ¥20e/L/L 9jeQ piemy

Ovd4dng Ao pig aAj)adwog-LoN - 1ejuog Auoyny $53201d piemy

001 eNng Zaul ssalppy 1410 juswainsoud jo adA)

jeang assauen M 6T jaur ssalppy ANM 10 PIBIYS enjg ssoig an|g spewybiy SWeN Jopusp ‘61

-36-

VIN : @1eQ paypeD
A3LLINGNSNN 'snjelg
§¢0e/6L/20 :9jeq uny

¥202/4£/Z) :Bulpu Jea\ feosid

Aouaby juswdojanaq lemsnpuj Alunoy aug Joj Hoday Juswan20.d

CLlab gt A Lpcrpibtiiirinjva) ©IL) |k le SLbal i Sk PR ORGP )T o %
S 1ol Pa —



ZZ jo g| abed

junowy sy) uey)

uopduosag $527 S| aneA 1N

100) UOlESHUBLINE JOJSB-INLW PUE SBIIAIBS || juswiainooid ae4 ayy Aym ujejdxg
leap Jessid

S3)EIS payun Aijunod 86'L1L°L$ 104 papuadx3 junowy
uojBeyjesujrolg unowy

¥ snid anjeA 9B Jieq

908r L 9po) [e1sod ajeq pug

AN ojels ajeQq piemy

HILSIHOOH 1o JORJUOD BlRlS Japun paseyaing $599%01d piemy
00Z sung Zoul ssalppy asemyos - ABojouyoa juswiaInooid jo adAl

SNUAAY |I9A] S9 L L8UIT SSAIPPY *ou] ‘saibojouyos ¢ Jeke dweN Jopusp ‘2z
junowy ay3 uey

uonduasag $S97 S| aNjeA oy

usu)sanul diysiaquisiy judwainooig Jjed ayy Aym ujejdxgy
1e3a) feasid

sojels pajun Anunop 00°000'6.$ dod papuadx3 Junowy
uojbay/esutroid junowy

¥ shid ONfeA Ja)Jepy Jed

02kl 3po) |eysod ajeq puz

AN ajels ajeQ piemy

O1vd4ng [ Th) JapIO 9SBUIINGAUSIIBINI0I J0BIJUOD LUON §$5390.4d plemy

Y29 euns <ou| ssalppy Jaylo JUBWAINI0IY JO adA)

19943 Ulel £01

Loy ssalppy

elefeiN ojeyng jseau|

SWEN JOPUSA ‘12

VIN : 8jeq peued

-37-

¥202/1e/Z1 :Bulpuz Jea, |edsiy
Q3LLINGNSNN snjejg

G20¢2/61/20 :3jed uny

Aoueby Juswdolaaaq [euisnpu) AUN0Y 81T 10} Hodey JusLWBINIOld




ZZ jo g} sbey

jJunowy ay} ueyy

uojyduaasag $597 S| anjeA e

1934g 003 7 Je siieda) Buip|ing Juswainsoayd Jey ay) Aym upejdxg
JeaA |easid

SOJelS pajun Anunoy 00°005'5Z$ 404 pepuadx3 junowy

uojbeyjeoulroiy 00°005'62$ junowy

¥ snid 00°005'SZ$ anje jeJel Jjed

LZivl 8po) [ejsod ajeq pu3

AN ajels ¥20Z/LL/L ajeq piemy

MHVd GHVHOHO A1 pig eAnedwod-UoN - Peluod Huoyiny $59901d piemy

Zauj] ssaippy

SoUeUSJUIBIN/UOIIONISUOY pue ubiseq

Jjuswainsosd jo adA)

peoy Iojke} S JZst Lauy ssaippy *ou] ‘dnoug uonongsuo) ybiyo JwiepN Jopuap R 74

junowly ayj ueys

uondusseq $587 S1 anjeA Joiew

SMaN ojeyng uj sasfou Buueay agng jusawainodolg Jjed oy} Aym ujejdxy
, 1ea A [easiq

S9jelS pajun Anuno) 97'800°01L% Jod papuadxg junowy

uoibay/esulroid junowy

‘ ¥ snid anjep joxlew Jied
46109 8poJ [ejsod ajeq pug

l ajeys ajeq plemy

AVIHLLS 1OUVYD fno 19pIO 3SEUIINGAUSWAINI0I JOBIUDT) UON $52001d piemy

Zau| ssaippy PEINTe) JUBWINJ0IY JO ddA L

§€09 x0g Od Lau ssalppy ses|disjug 991 awIeN Jopusp ‘€T

VIN : @Jeq peynen

Q3aLLNgNSNN
§202/61/20

snjejg
eleq uny

¥20z/L€/2) :Buipu3 Jeay [eosiy

fouaby juswdojanag [erisnpu| Aunos au3 4oy Hodey JUBLWAINOOIY

-38-

Gldsagnd Al LALD) Ll realad) Cdpinsa ol o S EIRLERR Y B (R ES R h
. . r
S o Y o] Pay




22 Jo ¢7| abey

Junowy sy} uey;

uondiiosag $597 S1 anjeA 19yiel

$80|AI9S Jipne Juspuadapu| juswaInsoly ae4 ayy Aym urejdxsy
189 A [2asig

S3lBS pajun Aijunod 00°00%0€$ 104 pepuadx3 junowy
uolbieyeaujrold 00°00¥'0£$ junowy

¥ shid anjeA jojdep Jed

(4074 41 apoJ jejsod SZ0Z/0€/9 ajeq pu3z

AN sjejs 2202/8¢2/6 ajeq plemy

ovddang i pig sAnedwoy - penuod Auoyny $53201d piemy

Zouj ssalppy S3OIAIDS JRUOISSB0Id JOYIO juswainooid jo adA]

1994)g ulpjuely 69¢ LauyT] ssalppy dT11 YRIUI0QI uBpswin SWEN J0puUsp ‘92
unowy ayj uey

‘Joalosd Juswsedsueyug uopduasag $507 S| onjeA Joduep
el | aulaIoyg ay) 0} pajejad seojales Buiuueld pue Bunnsuon JuawaInaod dieq oy3 Aym ujejdxsy
1e3) jeos|d

S3)R)S pajun Anunoy 00'vLE' LSS Jo4 papuadxg junowy
uojbayeoulrold 00°ZL€9L18 junowy

¥ shid anjeA joNsep Jieq

60Z¥L 3poY jejsod ajeq pug

AN AaAelg 2¢0¢/92/1L ajeq piemy

O7vd4d4ng A1 pig 2Angadwog - joenuod Auoyny $5330.4d piemy

Zou| ssaippy saoineg Buginsuon JuswaInsoud jo adAy

SNUBAY aIemejaq 069 Laul ssaippy *au] ‘s1ssubug ol SWeN JOpuap K74

V/N : 9leq pewped
J3LLINGNSNN snjejg
5202/61/20 :8leq uny

(NTRT R TN W e

¥202/1€/21 :Buipuz Jeay jedsiy

AouaBy Juswdojenaq euisnpu| Ajunog su3 Joj Hoday Juswainaold

XL b lam g Sdadpdjdisn )i ..........-%

Sladwod

-39.



22 Jo G| abed

junowy ayj uey;
uopduasaq $597 S1 9NjeA 19IeW

80eds 801jj0 Pases| ul uoisuedxa WO BUBIBJUOD JuUdWAIND0Ig Jje4 ayy Aym ujejdxy
JeaA [easiq

sejejg pajun Anunoy 26'58'59L$ o4 papuadx3 juncwy

uojbey/eauiroid junowy

¥ shid ANEA JJely Jey

oLerl 8paJ |ejsod ajeg pu3

AN ajels 2jeqg piemy

Ovd44ng [STh) JapIQ 8SeYdINGAUBWAINI0I JORIJUDD UON $53901d piemy

002 aUns 29U ssalppy soueUSjuiR/UONONYSUOD pue ubisa( juswaInvoig jo edAl

jo31)S BOBUSS L0/ Lour ssalippy 2711 ‘Wwewdojenaq jeans uebiyary JWEN JOPUSA 74

junowy ayj uetj}

saalojdwsa 10§ duRINSUE Yleap uopduasag $507 S1 anjep 19xien

[EJuUapIOOE pue doueInsul Ajliqes|p wis)-6uo) ‘soueinsu; sl wig) dnois juswiaingolg lied ayy Aym ureydxg
13 A (eosid

S9jelg pajun Anunop SSLP0'ELS o4 papuadxy junowy

uoifioy/adujroid §S°LP0'EL$ unowy

b snid SS'LP0'EL$ anjeA jaxiep Jieq

99101 apay jeysod S20Z/0El ajeq pu3

AN Ae)s eoe/Lis |jeq piemy

MHOA M3N A1 pIg aannadwog-UoN - Joejuo) Auoyiny $59201d piemy

Zouln ssaippy P00 JUBWBIN0Ig Jo adA]

9NUBAY ed 00T Lauy ssauppy Auedwog asueinsuj syl ueyjedoljeyy SwiepN Jopusp 12

VIN : 8jeq psued
QaLLINGNSNN ‘sniglg
§202/61/20 :ajeq uny

¥202/Le/2) Buipuz Jea eosiy

Aouaby juswdojoneq [2usnpu) Aunos euT Joy Poday JUBWBIN00.Y

LLdsh Ao AT LRCBEI WL ] DL Bt bl s = Saas il

e L] ﬁ@

=124Vl

-40-



[44

jo 9 sbed

junowy a8y} uey

(SL1't$) suonensibal uopdiiasag $537 SI aNjeA 19NIEW
Wwens '(00¢'z$) senp diysiequiswi (000'9$) sjuane ioy sdiysiosuodg juswainoold e ay) Aym ujejdxy
1ea) |easiq

sejeig pajun Anunon 00°52¢°21L$ Jo4 papuadx3 junowy
uoibay/eouiroig unowy

¥ shid SNjeA Jdjel Jied

11h44% 9poJ |ejsod 3jeq pu3z

AN ajels ajeq piemy

ANVBY Ao 18pI0 35BN AUBLUBINI0IY JORIUOY) UON $53301d piemy

100]4 Y Zoul] ssaippy ayl0 jusuiaNooad jo adA)

anuaAy uojbulysems LLL Laul ssaippy (DA3ISAN) [12uno) Juswdojers( 2IWOUCIT BJIS YIOA MON JWeN JOPUap ‘0¢
junowyy ay; ueyy

uonduasag S$5937 S| anjeA JxIe

100418 Alad G Je SaI0 o) Uy juawaInoold Jjed ayy Aym ugejdxg
1ed A [eas|d

Sejejg payun Anunoy 96'91£'651$ 104 papuadx3 junowy
uojBay/eaulroig 9'SZ1'v85$ junowy

¥ shid ¥9'S21'v85$ anjeA je¥en Jied

1] ¥4 41 3po) |eysod 2202/LE/2 3jeq pu3g

AN aels £202/LITh 8jeqg piemy

O1vdd4ng 1o Pig aAadwWog-UoN - joejuo) Auoyiny SS3201d piemy

00z 2ung Zour ssaJppy »PYyo JUBWBIND04 JO adA}

}90.)S BI0USS 0L

Laur] ssalppy

2977 ‘wewdojers(g jeens uebiympy

awieN Jopuap 62

VIN * @jeQ peuiue)
a3LLINENSNN snigls
§20z/61/20 2leq uny

¥20Z/1€/z1 :Buipul Jea, |eosiy

-41-

Aouaby juswdolanaq [eujsnpu) AJunog aug 10} Moday JUSWaIN00I4

(T RTES Lt S SN TP TN N TSN NI « TH W IR YA P S T T T [ 1 ey
= lal el @



(44

Jo /| sbey

Junowy 3y} ueyy

uopdisaseq $507 S1 aNnjeA Jeyiel

¥Z/L/e-¥2/1 /1 1o} asueinsul sbexoed jediounuw ‘asueinsul Ajiqe) [ereuas juswainaoly Je4 ayy Aym upejdxg
1BOA [edsiq

S9Je)S pajun Aiunod 29°00L°41$ o4 papuadx3 junowy
uojfey/eaulroly 29°00L'LLS junowy

¥ snid ANeA Jep Jied

9161 9poJ |ejsod ¢0g/LIE ajeq puz

vd AeLs 220T/LE/ZL 8jeq plemy

VIHA12avIHd Ao pig aanadwo - joeljuod Auoyiny $S3201d pJemy
Zau| ssasppy 18410 JusWaINaoi Jo adA}

16204 X089 'O'd LBulT ssasppy sejuedwo asueinsu| ewdispe|iyg QweN JIOpUaA “Ze
junowy sy uey

uopdudsag $5977 S| @njep Jaxien

doysyiom pue sjeusiew Bujuies; yeys juswiainsoid Jed ayj Aym ugepdxg
1ea A [e3siq

$9)e)S PaNYfn Aijunos 00°520'S$ 104 papuadx3g junowy
uojbay/asuiaoig 00°520'G$ junowy

¥ snid 00'520's$ anjeA jexlep sed

(X444} 9p0Y |ejsod ¥20c/0Liy ajeQ puz

AN aes v2oz/el/L ajeq piemy

FTINASWVITIIM 1) P!g 2Anedwo)-uoN - Peaue) ALoyny $$800.d piemy
Zouy ssaippy saoineg buninsuon uawaINosodd Jo adA)

2AUQ |lel] youey 82 |8u| ssaippy 2T ‘Buinsuo) yep sy uo aweN Jopuap ‘1e

VIN : ®jeq peyied

Q3LLINGNSNN
§¢02/6L/20

snjelg
:8jeq) uny

¥202/1¢/z1 :Buipuz Jes, (edsiy

-42-

KoueBy juswdojeaaq jeuysnpul Alunog su3 10} podey JuaIaIND0I4

Kot N (IR I JA (SR IEFY IR = NI WS T YRS iy [ NI R

I Vel Py




Zz Jo g| abey

junowy ayj uey)
uondyasaqg $S37 S| anjeA jJoxIeN

SaSEQ 8|Ge)] ‘Sp4eoq S)iym ‘sieyn juswiaInsoly djed ayy Aym ugejdx3z
ICONTERE

S8JBIS pajun Anunop 2E'G6E'6$ Jo4 papuadxg junowy

uoibayyjasujrold Junowy

b snid anjeA 19)dew Jeq

L0S6v 3po) jejsod ajeq pug

IN ajels ojeq piemy

SAldvd ANVHD Ao JoBJUOY 3Je)S Japun paseyding $5990.d piemy

Zauln ssaJppy sa|iddng/sanipowiuo) JUBWAIND0I Jo adA§

4961 X089 Od 18Ul ssalppy ‘ou| ‘ased|ells BWepN Jopusp pe

junowy ayj ueys

(020'9%) uondiioseq §597 S onjeA 3o

S{epusled GZ0z '(058°9¢) Bunuud pue ubisep oiydesd podey lenuuy £207 JuBwWRINI04d die4 ayj Aym ujejdxg
Jeaj |easiy

Sejejg pajun Anunog 00°025'21L$ 104 pepuadx3 junowy

uoifayjeauiroid unowy

¥ snid anjep jaxJel Jied

gcevl apoy |eysod ajeq pug

AN aqels ajeq piemy

1SHIHNY D 13pIQ) 8SeyING/UBWIBINI0I JOBIUDD UON $59901d plemy

Zau) ssalppy

S0IAIOS |EUOISSD0Id JOLO

JuBWAINI0I Jo adA)

201 3)Ng ‘aANQ UULID Uyor &z

Loaul ssalppy

071 ‘qemand

awie JOpPUdA o¢

VIN : eleq peyniad
Qa3LLINGNSNN :snjeyg
6Z02/61/Z0  ‘eleq uny

¥20z/1€/2) :Bupug Jea eosiy

Koueby uswdojereq jeuisnpuj Ajunog eug Joj woday JustIBIND0IH

Lldsr i AR Lbiupinlancaeag CI0L|pin e L A L N = N [ 1 | &

=1Vl

-43-



22 10 61 sbed

Junowyy ay} ueyy

uonduosag SS37 S| aNjeA joMiel

PZ/62/2L-S2/62/T 1 40} adURINSU] BWND JusWIN204 Jie4 ayy Aym ujejdxgz
1e3 ) (EIS14

S8jElg pajun Anunog 00'2.€'s$ o4 papuadxg junowy
uojBay/edujaoid 00°2.£'S$ junowy

¥ Shid N[eA joxlely Jied

99¢5. 9po) [ejsod ¥202/6Z/2L ajeq pu3

X1 ajels £202/62/2L 8jeg piemy

sv1iva A1 pig eAedwo) - Joenuon Ajuoyiny $S820.d piemy

Zoul sseippy 1BYIO juswiaindold §o adAj

LL€099 X0d QOd j3ul ssalppy slajoaes) BWEN l0puUs;A ‘9€
junowy ay) ueyj

uonduosaqg S597 S) enjeA JoNJe

SC/L/E-¥Z/LIE 10} 8ouURINSUl abeyoed [eppIaWWLOD juswaIngoid aed ayy Aym ugejdxy
1B9A [eds|d

sejels peiun Aiunop 00'v8Y' 19$ do4 papuadx3 Junowy
uojBay/eoulaoid 00'v8t' 193 junowy

¥ Shid anjeA jaXJe Jieq

99264 8poY |eysod S20g/ve ajeq puz

X1 ajelg ¥20e/Lie ajeq piemy

SvTiva A Pig 9Alisdwio] - aeluo) Ajuoyny $$800.d piemy

Zoury ssaippy B0 JuawaINvoIg Jo adA)

916099 X0g Od Laur ssalppy piopieH ay | suieN Jopusp ‘G

V/N : eleq patad
QaLLINGNSNN ‘snieis
§202/61/20 9jeq uny

Lldss g AL

¥202/L€/Z) :Bupuz Jea |eosiy

Kouaby Juswidojersq [euisnpuj Ajunog sug Joy Hodoy JusWwaInoo.y

e N L R = N L = T N e e T P |

3 1 ol Wl P

-44-



ZZ 10 0Z abed

junowy ay) ueyy

uonduasaq $590" S| anjeA JoNIey

SZ/11€-p2/ )1 /g 40} 661800 A)Iqei] SSaOXD PUDIaS PUE efjaiquun jJudWIAINI0Ig ae4 ay) Aym upejdxg
1eaA [easid

sejels pajun Anunog 00'258'cc$ 404 papuadx3 junowy
uoibayjeoujroLg 00°2s8'ces junowy

¥ shid anjeA Jaxley Jied

csovL 3pay Jeysod S20Z/L/E 8jeQ pug

AN aReys V202/LIE AeQg plemy

vd0dNyv 1S3 Ao pig aAljadwioy - peQUOD Aluoyiny $50201d plemy
Zeu| ssaippy Byl jusLaIngoid jo adA)

peoy J9)eny) 00 Leur ssalppy SOJBIDOSSY B LSSl "H'M SWEN JOPUIA 8¢
junowy ay} ueyy

uopdyasag $504 S| anjeA Jaxiep

ss|ddns aao juawainsoid Jjedq ayy Aym ujejdxg
1ea A jeasty

SIJEIS pajun Agunod 9L'LSL'ELS Jo4 papuadxg junowy
uoibay/eoulroig unoury

¥ shid anjep jaxJe Jiey

86220 3poJ jejsod ajeq pu3

VYN aqels ajeq piemy

NOls0og Ao 13pIQ 9SLYDINGUSLIAIND0I JIENUOT) UON $598301d plemy

Zauyq ssalppy sajjddng/sampowiwon JUSWAIND0. Jo adAy

101186 X0g "O'd Lauy ssaippy *0U| 0D UOSBW "g'M BuwleN JIOpUSA L€

V/N - 91eQ pagiped
Q3LLINgGNSNN ‘sniejg
$¢02/61/20 ‘Sjeg uny

bodeled it P22

LhCop g erblb oy va

¥202/1€/2) :Buipu3 Jeep jeosiy

Kouaby Juswdojenaq [euisnpul Ajuncy su3 Joj poday Juswainaold

L R = e I e N LA | %
= 1 > W ol Tas

-45-



2z jo Lz sbed

junouwy ayj ueyy

SaAlEUIS)jE [enidaouod uopduosag $S27 S| anjeA JaNJe
Baly [euoleaiosy BAISSEd }aal) sejowS 0) Pajejal saoiales Bunnsuo) juswWIaINg0Lg 1jed4 ayy Aym urejdxg
Jeap [easid
Sajels pajun Anunoyp 00°625°01$ o4 papuadx3 junowy
uojbay/asujroig 00°005'69% junowy
¥ snid ANjEA Jo)Jel Jied
Leevl apoY |e3sod ajeg pu3z
AN ajels 2202/0¢/6 ajeq piemy
ITUASWYITIIM LSTh) pIg sAnedwoy - Joenuod Auoyny $5930.d paemy
00Z 3ung Z8u| ssaippy saojues Buninsuon juaaINdod Jo odA)
Od ‘eImajiyaly
peoy Aefss3 /¢ |auy ssaippy adeospueT g Bujfoaing ‘BuussuiBuz ‘ainjoayosy gan [OPUSM BweN JOpusA oy
junowy ay} uey;
uondyisseq $S31 S| anjep J9)IeN
IS 898Ul £F} 18 dnuesjo abewep Jojepn uawalnaolg aje4 ayy Aym ujejdxg
13, [easiy
SelelS pajun Anunod 1Z°L16'PLE Jo4 papuedx3 junowy
uojbey/aaujroid LTL16'7LS junowy
¥ Shid L2°LL6'TLS aN[eA jaxley sey
yX44 4} 9poy |ejsod 3jeq puz
AN - ajels ¥202/Z/L Neg piemy
O1lv3dng Ao Pig dAadwon-uo - PenuoD Ajuoyny $S89014 plemy
Zou|T ssalppy BYo JUIWAIND0IY Jo adA]
peoy Jaunio 06} Louj] ssalppy 'OU| UONEIOIS@Y INOPIeAA SWEN JOpusp 6E

VIN : @jeq payad
A3 LLINGNSNN snjejg
§20¢/61/20 ejeqg uny

¥20Z/1£/Z1 :Buipug Jee, [edsiy

Aoueby juswdojaraq [eusnpuy Ajunoy aug Joy woday JudwdINolg

Lldsd B AAES ARl WL aa on) EXia(bansrbes 2y Rl B

-46-



22 jo ZZ ebed

VN : 81eQ peynan

QaLLINGNSNN
§¢02/61/20

snyejg
jeq uny

L e A

SjuswIw PPy

¥202/LE/2) BuIpuz Jean [eosid

AouaBy Juswdojens( Jelisnpu) Ajunog sug 40} Woday Juswainooig

EBEARARELLA ISRl D) B il o b £ LRG]S0 [N b
S ol el Pary

-47-



€ Jo | abey

ime soueuld sleig ey Jo (6)-6€1
U013095 )M 8OUBPIOIJE U) ‘PaLINID0 SARY SUOHEIOIA S1ayMm SSOUB)SUI Ul suoioues asodw o) pue ‘Juswainoold
SOA e Bulinp joejuod ajgissiuuadwi o suoneldjie s1ebiseAul pue malaal o} ssecoid B aaey Auoyiny ay) saoq ‘6
£19BJU0O B|ISSILLISdWI SIY) JO OPEW PIOJAL B SBM ‘SOA J| ‘eg
men
soueuld ajelS 8y} Jo (01)(-6€) LONYAS Yim souepIoodE U ‘polad Bugiodal ayy Buunp Juswainooid ay) asuanyu)
oN 0} paydwaye Jo Jusiwesnoosd & Bulnp JoBJU0D S|gissiuaduwl pey JOPUSA B Jey) suiwielap Ajuoyiny ey} pPIq k']
&9V BuihqqoT Juswiainaold ey, ‘meT adueu)d 9JelS au} Jo (E)(Z)I6E | UONOS )M SOUBPI0JOE
S9A | Ui ‘juawiaunoold oyioeds B uo JoRjUOD PazuoyIne ay) Se aAIes 0 suosiad 1o uosiad e ajeubisep Auoyiny ay; pig 'l
£SIPBNUOD Jueluaindold Joy suogedydeds 1o ‘SjuaWINop piq ‘sjesodold
SOA 40 uoneyDIes SIl uf suoliqiyoud pue satdljod Juswainooud sy Jo Areuins e ajesodiodul Auoyiny ay) seoq ‘9
SBA {Juswasibe uoisnjjoo-uou e ubis 0) siappiq aagoadsoud sanbal Auoyiny ay) saoq G
oN Lseseyoind ssauisng Jojpue [2AEd] Joj seakojdwa o} spaed Jpalo ubisse Aluoyiny ay) sa0g v
oN ésaulapinb juswiainooid sy 0} suolideoxa 10} mojje Auoyiny ey) seoq e
SOA Lpieog 8y} Ag percidde pue ‘papasu ji papusiie ‘Ajjenuue pemeirss saulepinb Juswainooid oY) aly A
saloljod-s)es0di03-sn-jnoqe/woo-Auepios mmm//:sdpy SOA ssaugepinb juawainooid aney Auoyiny ay) seag 'k
(s1qeayiddy y1) Tun asuodsay

VIN : ejeq peyipen $2Z02Z/LE/2) Bupug Jes |eosty
a3LLINGNSNN snjejg

G202/61/20 |jeg uny uonesodiog juswdojeaaq feucibey Aunoy sug pue ojeyng Jo} Hodey JuawaINdolg

Rt @ Al LPUBRANFLLL PN L0y DXL iE 0N

e T P T IS TR

=l VW

[ vs.iNawHOVLLY|

-48-



€ Jo Z abeyd

junowy 8y} ueyy
uoyidiosag $597 S| anjeA 19xiely

*Ajanoe Buipua) o) pajejal sadimss jefe juswainsoad Aied ayy Aym ujejdxg
Jea) jeosid

SIelS pajIuN Anjunod 12'500'62$ 1o papusdx3 junowy

uolboy/eauirold 12°500'52$ junowy

¥ snid aNjeA joylep ey

202yl 9poY |eysod 2202/LIZ) 9jeq pug

AN aeis 6102/L/S ajeq plemy

Olvd4ddng A1 pig aARlledwoy - Joenuos Ajuouny $59%01d plemy

Zoui ssaippy saoInlag [eban juswaInsold jo adA

Buipyng Aveai gogl Lau|] ssaippy "0°d ‘sulq B Zuminy SWIEN JOpU3A K4

unowy sy} ueyy

‘JuswasINquIIss uopduosaqg $597 S| oNjeA ey

asuadxa pue ‘juai ‘seapues Buyjess 10} ya| Aunos au3 o) 29} Juaweabeuepy JUBWRINI0UY Jleq ayy Aym ujejdx3y
Jea) fessiq

S9Je}S pajun Aunoy v¥'L2€°00€$ Jo4 papuadxy junowy

uojbay/asujroig unowy

¥ shid IN[eA jaxe Jjeq

€021 3po) |ejsod ajeq pug

AN ojels ajeq piemy

O1vddng £10 J3pIQ BSBYIINGAUBLIDIND0I JOBHUOT UON $58201d piemy

¢0P 8iing Zeuln ssaippy saoneg Buyers juswainsoid jo adAy

joang Auad g6 Lauy sseuppy val Aiuno) au3 sweN JOpuap 't

VIN : ojeq peyen
Q3LLINENSNN snjelg
SZ0Z/6L/20  ‘eleq uny

¥202/1/Z1 Buipuz Jeo A [eosid

AECAR LA iy T (pItrE Bl ey Vb ff

uoje.odiog Juswidoaaa( feuoifiey AUNoD 813 pue ojeyng 1o Woday JusWaINo0IY

Magf TRUPETN

>4 el

-49-



€ Jo ¢ abed

SjUsWuioy [euonIpPY

jJunowy 9y} uey;

uonduasaq $S97 §] anjeA )oXsen

"S82IAIS JIpne juapuadapu) juswaInaoIg ned ayy Aym upejdxy
1B3A [e9s]d

sejels pajun Anuno) 00°006'9+$ o4 papuadx3 unowy
uolfeyjeoulrosyg 00°006'91$ junowy

¥ shid anjep joiew sied

A4 2" 8pa (ejsod §202/0€/9 #jeg pu3

AN ajelg 2202/82/6 ejeq pJemy

Ovddng a0 PIg sAiedwog - JoeNuo) Auoyiny $$920.d piemy

Zaup ssalppy

S90IAIBS |BUDISSS0Ld JBLIO

juswaIngoid Jo adA)

19848 ulpjueld 69¢

Laur] sselppy

d17 HILIODO) uspswin

aweN Jopuep '

/N : 9jeq peuned
Q3LLNANSNN smels
SZ02/6LZ0  ‘eleq uny

¥202/LE/2L :Buipug Jeah [eosig

uonelodio) juswdojeaaq [euoiBay AN a3 pue ojeyng 1o} Hoday Juswainooig

bbb U A L REMR AL CXLLL R R e ) Shad (IR ) UV T3 1Y %
S ) ol Wl Vs

1
=
¢



8o ) abeq

éme aaueuld ejels ey Jo (g)l6¢1
UOIOaS Y)im SOUBPICIIE Ul ‘PAIINOD0 dARY SUOHEOIA 219UM SSOUEJSU] Ul suogoues asodwi) o} pue ‘juseweinsoid
SOA e Buunp joejU00 Bjqissiuadul jo suohebalie ajeB)saaul pue mainal o sses0id B aaey Aluoyiny ay) seog 6
£10BIU0O 3|qIssiuLadiug SIy) JO 8pEW PIODB) B SBM ‘SDA §| ‘eg
men]
soueutd ajels sy} Jo (01)-6E1 UONDES Ym aouepIoode ul ‘pouad Bujioda ay) Buunp Juswainoosd ayy aouanpuy
oN 0} paydwaye Jo Jusiwainoosd B Buunp joeuoD ajqissiuusdul peYy JOPUSA e Jey} sulwisiep Auoyiny ey pia Q
4.9V DuiAqqo Juswaindold 8y L, ‘MeT aoueuld 3)elS ay) Jo (e)(2)-6E L UOHOAS Ujm SOUEPI0DDE
S8A [ W ‘usweundoid oyioads B uo JOBJUOO PEZUOYINE BY) Sk aalas o suosiad Jo uossed e ajeubisap Ajuoyiny ey pia 'l
£510eJjU02 Juawaindoid 1o} suonesyoads 1o ‘Sjuawnoop piq s|esodosd
SOA 40 uopejioljos s Ul suoliqiyosd pue sapljod Juswelnooud s)i Jo Atewwns e ajesodiooul Aoyiny sy} $90( ‘9
S8\ Zuatisaibe uoisnijoo-uou e ubis ) siapplq sandadsoid annbai Auoyiny ey seoq ‘G
oN ¢saseyoind ssauisnq Jojpue [aael) Joj seakojdwa o) spieo Jipasd ubisse Ajuoyiny ay) seoQ v
oN £seu|jep(nb swainooid sy o) suoydaoxs 1o} mojje AjLoyiny sy} seoq e
SOA LP1eoq ay) Aq paacidde pue ‘papasu i pepualue 'Ajlenuue pameirss seulepIinb Juswainaod ay) aly 'z
$2|91j0d-8]e40d109-SN-INoge/Wod"AUepIos mmm//:sdyy SOA ¢Saulepinb yuawainaoid aaey Ajuoyiny ay) sooq '
(a1qeayddy ) Tun asuodsay uopsanp

VIN : 8jeQ paymnped
Q3 LLINGNSNN snjels
§202/61/20 ‘@jeq uny

98 INIWHOVLLY

Y20Z/|£/2) ‘Bulpu3 sesA jeosiy

uonesodiog Juswidojersq pue- felisnpul Aunog sug pue ojeyng Joj Hoday Juawendoly

Lldah i AR LR L g AR CILbpp b b g Saseid )

-51-



8 0 Z abed

junowry 2y} uey}

uondussaq $597 5] anjeA JoJep

suizebews uoydsleg IS Ul PE Yied 82J9WILI0D SIUESSIBUSY juswaIndoig Jey ayy Aym ujejdxg
1ea  jessiq

$ajejs payun Asunog 00°000'6$ Jo4 papuedx3 junowy

uoibayasuiroid jJunowy

¥ snid anjep jae| Jiey

2600€ 3po) jessod ajeq puj

Vo ajers ajeq piemy

SSOUDHON A 18P0 SBYNGAUSWIBINI0I JORIUOD) UON 5S3004d piemy

Zou) ssalppy Jayio jJuaweindo.d jo adAy

00z 91ng ‘Aemyled siouio 8yl 6zZoo Lauy ssalppy -2u] ‘ejeq Aemuo)n JWeN JOpUap 4
junowy ayj ueyj

“Jed uopduosag $597 S| anjep jaqiew

ssautsnquy Ajuno? aug ay) Joj obo] mau B ysijqe)sa o} S80IAIAS SRy UswWaIN0Ld e ay) Aym uiejdxy
Jeaj [easid

Sajelg pajun Ayunop 00'000's$ 404 papuadx3 junowy

uojBay/asugrolg 00°000'G$ junowy

¥ snid 00°000'G$ OnjeA J9MJe Jied

elerl 2po) |ejsod ajeq puz

AN aels ¥202/8/8 ajeq plemy

Ovd4ngd Ao Pig eAniedwiog-uoN - joejuog Auolny $53201d plemy

Zeul ssaippy SB0IAISG [BUO|SSDJ0I 1AL juswainsoig jo adA}

1904S %8883 OZE LUl ssalppy "ou| ‘seap| 61 aWeN JIOpusp b

-52-

V/N : ejeq peyines
Q3LLINGNSNN snjelg
§202/61/20 ‘@jeg uny

¥202/1€/2) :Buipuz Jeay |eosiy

uojjesodio) Juswdojeas( pueT [euisnpu] Aunod aL3 pue ofeyng Jo) Woday Juswainsolg

LA AR LA BN LR LD s ) S gy ).




8 Jo ¢ ebey

junowy ay} ueyy

RUETTERI T TTEY] uopduasag $597 Si an[eA JadjIel
asuadxa 'saoinas Buye)s 1o} yaj Ajuno) aug o) o) Jualuebeueyy JusWBIN20.d Jieq sy Aym ujejdx3
Jea jeasid

S9jejg pajun Aiuno) Z26'vL1'659% o4 papuadx3 junowy
uoibiay/asujaoiy junowy

¥ shid anjeA 19)Jep Jieq

€£0ZP 1 8poY |ejsod 8jeg pug

AN aes d3)eQ piemy

Ovd4ng o 13pJIQ 8SBYIINGAUBLIBINI0IY J9BJUOD) UON S$S820Jd PIEMY

£0¥ suns Zoeuj ssalppy saolneg Buye)s juswiaINg0.Id jo adhy

1004)5 Alod 6 Loul ssaippy KousBy juswdojaaaq jeuysnpu) Aunog aug SWieN JOpusp b4
unowy ayj ueyj

Wed 92J9WWI0Y) uopduasaq $597 Sl anjep 1aJep
douessleusy Je (g peoy,) Aempeos mau JO J88} GG | JO LUGRONIISUOD juswaInNdoIg lieg 8y Aym upejdxz
1ea) |easiy

S81.1S pajun Anyunoy 81°26¢£°CL1$ 404 popuadx3 yunowy
uojBayyaujacid 09'766'000'2$ junowy

¥ shid anjeA 19yJep seq

vZerl 3pod |eysod ajeq puz

AN aAels 2202/12/y ajeq plemy

VOINIS 1SIM Ao pig sAnedwo?) - JoeUOD) Ajuoyiny $S920.d plemy

Zaul ssaippy

SoUBUBJUIBIN/UOIIONISUOY pue ubisaq

JUBWRIN20.I Jo adAL

SAUQ s,plaeq JUBS 8E

l8u[] ssalppy

*0Uj UOIONIISUOYD [BISUSS) Y B T

aLuRN JOPUBA %

VIN : 8jeq paied
Q3LLINGNSNN snjelg
§€02/61/120 ‘Bjeg uny

¥20zZ/18/2) :Bupuz 1eap feosiy

uojelodiog Juswdolaaaq pueT [elisnpuj A)unos) aus pue ojeyng 10 Uodoy JUBWAINI0IY

Lider gt A

ABLRpAMTLLAPLI ) DLy s Nee oy

e Y L T e S L |

SR PEREIRE

-53-



8 Jo p abed

J08AIS I|9PO Jo/pue peoy abpry Bupsixe

junowy ay} uey}

8U) Wodj xied s2lawWIo) douessieusy o Buipusixe sAempeos mau uo(jduasaq $$37 S1 anjeA 19e
40 UORONJISUOD BU) 40 S301IBS Jasuibue Juapisal pue ‘ubisap ‘Buussuibuy JusWaINI0Ig 1je4 ay) Aym ujejdxsg
1ea ) |easig

Selels pajun Aijunoy 95°626' 7§ o4 papuadx3 junowy

uojoy/edusrold S2'¥15'628$ Junowy

¥ snid SnjeA J9MJel Jeq

£oerl 9poY jejsod 9jeq pu3g

AN ajels 220c/9e/1L ajeq piemy

Ovd4ng LTh) Pig sapadlog - pejueg Auoyiny §S8301d piemy

002 aung Zau| sseippy souUeUdUIRIN/UORKONASUOD puk ubisaq JjuswaInsold §o edA

1934g Ul 562 Laur] ssalppy SOJeI0SSY Maqly o4 SWEeN Jopuap 9

junouwy ay} uey

{ed 8dJawwog) asuessieusy je (g peoy,) PEos mau Jo uopdusseq S$S87 S| anjep e
UDRONIISUOD By} Joj SaoIAIds Bunssuibus juapisal pue ‘ubisap ‘Bupssuibug juswainaold Jeq ayy Aym urejdxg
183 [easiq

sajels pejun Anunog 09°'118'65% o pspuadx3 yunowy

uoibayjeduiaoid 01'659'¢.£$ wnowy

¥ snid anjeA jaxen sed

£0Zhl apo) jejsod ajeq pu3

AN ajers 1202/82/L ajeq piemy

Ov44ng A1 pig aAlmadwo?) - joeRu0D) Ajuoyiny $52901d pIemy

00Z 2ung Zou| Ssaippy @oUBUBJUIBIN/UOIINISUOD pue uBise( jJuswWIAINI0.Id Jo adAy

18843 Ul G6T Leul ssalppy SOJEIN0SSY Uaqly Jo4 SuwieN Jopusp 'S

/N : ejeq paupen

-54-

¥202/1€/Z1 :Buipuz Jea, |eosiy
Q3 LLINGNSNN smeis

§202/61/20 Bleq uny uojesodiog juawdojsaaq pueT [emsnpuj Auno) aug pue ojeyng 10j Wodey awaIndold

ldat i AT CHCRRLMILL LR ] T It rLlad g St BE) LB 0G| by

=121




8 Jo g abey

junowy ay} ueyy

uopduasag $S37 S| anjeA JoMJel

"Hodal Yyd [enuue pue uoesyued 4ag [enuuy uawaINsold Jjeq 3y3 Aym urejdxg
Jea) [easiq

Sejejg payun Ayunoy 00°052'S$ o4 papuadxy junoury
uotbayeoauiaoid 00°052'S$ junowy

¥ snid anjep e ey

viovlL apay |ejsod 9jeq pu3

AN aes 6102/82/8 9jeq piemy
d31S3HO0H 3 Th) pig aAmedwo) - peuo) Aoyiny $5220id piemy
102 d1ng Zau|q ssalppy ssolaleg Bupginsuogn jusawainsouid jo adAL

josis alelg 00¢ Laur] sselppy Qd ssjeossy ejjsge] BWeN Jopuap '8
junowy ayj uey

uopduasag $597 S| anjeA J19Jep

"sajed Aunoy uo paseq (jasuno) [eseuss 5qT1) sadines Jebany JusLInsoIg aed ay) Aym ujerdxg
163, jeosid

Sojels pajun Aunop £2°€06°L9% o4 papuadxg junowy
uoibay/eauiaoig £2°€06'19$ jJunowy

¥ snid anjeA 19yJep ey

oLerl 9poJ |ejsod 120¢/L2) sjeqg pu3z

AN Aelg 600¢/gL/L jeq piemy

0vd44ng A1 Pig eapnadwo? - joenuod Auoyny $58204d piemy

000! ?ng “19aug abueyoxg 9z,

zour ssaippy

seoInBg (eba

JUBWBINI0A jo adA}

abueyoxg je upye

Jour sseippy

OT1d 'yoeeg stuey

aweN JOpUSA V)

VIN : 8jeq payiusy
Q3LLINGNSNN Snie)g
§20e/6L/20 ‘aleq uny

¥z0z/LE/2) Bulpug sea jeosty

uojeiodiog juawdoisaaq puen [eusnpuj AJUnod su3 pue ojeyng Joj Hoday JUBLIAINICIY

Llbaehftd As LULBE WFLLA L LTV~ NI WERTS P T T R T e

-

S 12 el Va3

-55-



8 10 9 abeyd

junolwy ey} ueyy

uopdpasaqg 537 S| anjep e

$80|AJ3S JIpne Juapuadapu) juswIaINIoId Jje4 ay) Aym ugerdx3g
Jea, |easid

S9le}S pajiun Anunogy 00°002'9$ Jog papuadxg junowy
uojBay/eoujroid 00°00Z'9% unowy

¥ snid anjeA el Jieq

20cyl 3poY [ejsod §202/0€/9 ajeqg pu3

AN ajels 2c0c/8ei6 ajeq piemy

Ov4dng A1) pIg @ABadwod - JorHuUOY AjLOLINY $$0004d piemy

Zoui ssalppy S89IAI9 |eUOISSBI0Id JAYID juswainaoid jo adA |

1934g uipjues§ 69¢

LU ssalppy

dT1 HIRILLODOW UspswNn

SwieN J0pusp ‘0l

junowy ay3 uey)

‘Auedosd uondiasaq $$97 S| anjen e

Jed 80J3WWO0Y S0UBSSIBUSY BY) 10) XEB) JOMES eULBMBYET JO A)ID pUTTITEY ] ELY R ae4 ayy Aym urejdxg
JeaA [easid

SajelS pajun Anunog 6¥°£96'628 404 papuadx3 junowy

uojbayjesuiroig unowy

¥ shid anjeA JoNJel Jileq

1x4:4% 8po) [eisod ajeq pug

AN ajels ajeq piemy

YNNYMYDIOV] Ao J9PIO 3SBYIINGAUBWRINIOI JORNUOT UON $598901d piemy

gsul ssaippy

840

JuawWAIN304d Jo adAL

peoy sbpiy 1L

Jour ssaippy

1ainseal] A1 euuemesoe]

aweN Jopuap 6

VIN : 8jeq paied
Q3 LLINGNSNN snjelg
§¢02/61/20 Bjeq uny

uopelodio) Juswdojeasq pueT [elsnpu) AUnoD aug pue ojeyng Joj Joday JueLBINd0Id

Lh et i A

¥20Z/18/21 Buipuz JesA jeos)y

CUIR I PR IR RIS FRW AR & IR WES TW P E T SRS TP YA T T T

PR o
S ol Wl Pas

-56-



8 10 L abed

junowy ay} ueys

uonduasag $597 Sl anep 194

S139/UE|ld Ja)se xed ssauisnquby Aunos) aug juswaInN9oig e ay3 Aym urejdxy
182/ |easiy

Sejels pajun Kiunod 22e9L' LIS doJ papuadx3 junowy
uojbey/asujaoig 00'€46'Sti$ junowy

¥ snid anjeA jadjiew Jjed

[T44:4% 8po) ejsod ejeq puz

AN ajers 020¢/9L/2) ajeq piemy
JTUASAVITIIM 3T pig aAledwo) - Jpenuo) Aluoyiny $S9904d piemy
002 a)ng Zaui ssalppy saolales Buynsuoy jJuswaindold jo adA

peoy Aefss3 g/¢ Lauy ssaIppy |spuap dWeN Jopuap ZL
junowy ayj uey;

ed 991awwo) uondiiasag $597 S anjep jeyIew
90UBSSIEUDY Je SUOISUIIXD BUI| J9JEM PUE JSMSS JO UOIONISUOD uewalinoold Jieg ay; Aym ujejdxy
Jea A jeasid

SRS pajun Aunog 60'028'8LS'L$ Jo papuadxg junowy
uobay/eoulroig v21'6.8'vEV' 98 junowy

¥ snid anjep Jae Jseq

902vL 3poy jeysod ajeq puz

AN aeg 2202/82/6 ajeq plemy

Ovd4ng &0 pig aangedwog - joejuod Ajoyny S§52320.4d plemy

zZouy] ssaippy

2oUBUAJUIBIN/UONONISUCY pue ubisag

jJuawainaosd jo adA)

j1eaxg suabuig gg 1

Lour ssalppy

*OU ‘SEDIAI8S UOIONASUOD OJUld

aWeN Jopusp ‘1

VIN : 3jeq pauned
a3LLNanNsSNN 'snjelg
§202/6L20 @B uny

¥20Z/LE/Z) Bulpuz JeaL (evsiy

uoyeiodiog Juswdoleasq puen [eusnpul AUNOY sug pue ojeyng Joj Hodey JUSWaINo0Id

(X S

-57-



8 0 g abeq

-58-

SHUSWWIoY [eUONIPPY

VIN : 8jeQ pauyan $202/1E/Z) :Bulpuz Jeo, jeasiy
Q3LLINGNSNN smeis

§202/61/20 9jeq uny uonesodiod Jualdojeasq puet femysnpu| Aunos sug pue ojeyng Jo} woday Juswainsold

LISt Qe ARD LRIRIWIRLA MR CYLL{ R b P o St PSS EBA ] 1 Vs A o

A R




Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2024 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements
Approval Date of Goals: March 27, 2024
Approval Date of Results: March 26, 2025

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission
statement and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well
they are carrying out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all
public authorities utilize the following format to annually review their mission statement
and performance measures and publish a measurement report. This report is designed
to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information
and accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’s
website at https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade
resulting in a successful business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation and retention for businesses and individuals which improves the quality of life for
the residents of the region.

-59_



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A: ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing incentives and
other economic development services to spur eligible development

projects.
Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives
Metric: $ 275 - § 300 M in private investment from approved tax incentives.

Results: A total of 7 tax incentive projects were approved by the ECIDA
Board of Directors in 2024. This included 2 amendatory. The total private
investment amount for these projects totaled over $314.2 M.

TAX INCENTIVES INDUCED

e w/o amend s w/ amend # of Project

400.0 18

326.3
7

350.0 16

14

I -

300.0 T
~ 12
250.0 .
200.0
150.0
100.0

50.0

Q. N B Y @

2022 2023

Objective 1B: RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new businesses and
private-sector investment in working capital, machinery and equipment.

Measurement: Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private investment for
loans approved

Metric: 8 - 10 business loans totaling $ 3 M with private investment = $6 M.

Results: RDC approved 5 Loans from the Legacy Fund for $2.45 M with $5.32 M
in private investment. Overall demand for loans was lighter than

revised 3/12/2025

-60-



Objective 1C:

expected in 2024 as interest rates and inflation remained stubbornly high,
costs for material have steadily increased and the shortage of labor in
many industries has negatively affected many businesses.

Loans: Approved & Private Investment Amounts {in $M)

$48.7
$50.0 - 10
$40.0 ' mS—— 8
$30.0 6
$20 > 4
.0
$7.0 | $10.4

$10.0 0 $3:1 ) $25 %53 2

$0.0 - | g i 0

2022 2023 2024
me Loan Amt i Private Invest Amt  wemssse 3 of loans closed

NOTE: Several large RDC loans paid off early in 2024 due to mergers,
refinancing of debt and the acceleration of loan payments - freeing up
funds / increasing the RDC’s lending capacity in in 2024. By the end of
2024, the RDC had over $6.5M to lend to Erie County businesses.

ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to obtain
low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Measurement: Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided to non-

Metric:

Results:

profit organizations and qualified private activity bond projects.

1 - 2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 — $35 M. NYS Housing and
Community Renewal regulations for affordable housing projects that
utilize 4% state and federal Low Income Housing Tax Credits(LIHTC)
remain in affect impacting the ECIDA — restricting bond activity to only
new construction. Since the Agency historically uses our bond cap to
finance affordable housing rehabilitation projects these regulations
negatively impact our ability to meet our performance goal. Efforts
through our Statewide Organization, continue to address the new
regulations to allow rehabilitation projects to utilize both IDA bonds and

4% LIHTC allocations.

The ILDC Board of Directors approved a $48 M taxable bond for
D'Youville University. This $48 M taxable bond financing will cover
startup costs to establish the osteopathic medicine program which
excludes facility funding.

revised 3/12/2025

-61-



$160.0

$120.0
$80.0
$40.0

$0.0

Tax Exempt Bonds Induced (in $M)

2022 2023

s Bond Amt === # of Bonds

2024

[ B A VO R Y |

Objective 1D: ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private (grant) funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private investment.

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Administer projects that have received grant funding.

Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted. Number and $

amount of grant funds under administration.

4-5 grants submitted for $2 - $2.5 M. 4 - 6 grants totaling $7 M under
administration.

A total of 18 grant applications were submitted in 2024 totaling $37.6 M
resulting (as of 3/12/25) in:
e 6 funded ($15.4 M)

e 7 pending ($15.5 M)

e 5 declined ($6.8 M)

$40.0
$35.0
$30.0
$25.0
$20.0

. §15.0
$10.0
$5.0
$0.0

Grants Submitted (in $M)

-
B
ban

2022 2023

s Grant Amt - es=—# of Grants

-62-

2024

20
18
16
14
12
10

co

ON PO

revised 3/12/2025



There are 7 active grants totaling $14.4 M under administration

Grants Under Administration

20.0 10
15.0 e e 8
-:._-"-" 6

10.0 ;
: 4
; 5.0 2

2022 2023 2024
mmw S Amount of Grants uder Administration =4 of Grants
Goal 2: To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion

targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

Objective 2A: ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned, and
underutilized buildings.

Measurement: Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects
Metric: 4 - 5 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $75 - $100 M.

Resuit: No Adaptive Reuse Projects were approved in 2024. Higher interest rates
and construction costs have impacted / delayed several prospective
projects however interest remains strong in the program.

Adaptive Reuse Projects {in SM)

$150.0 6
5

$100.0 4
3

$50.0 2
1

$0.0 0

2022 2023 2024

Total § === # of Projects

revised 3/12/2025

-63-



Objective 2B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA ILDC & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Number and $ amount of direct assistance through Agency product
offerings to MWBESs (i.e. business loans, tax incentives). Procurement
goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors for both operational and

other purchases.

Direct Assistance: $400,000 in direct assistance to 5 — 7 MWBEs.

Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE (i.e. office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing).

Other Purchases: Meet 100% of the following: 1) Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, 2) Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and 3) RFPs and/or bids
scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives valued at

10% of the scoring index

Direct Assistance: Assistance totaling $402,500 was provided to 3+
MWBESs: a $100,000 line of credit* was approved for an MBE and 2 loans
totaling $300,000 were approved for WBEs. In addition, the ECIDA
provided a $2,500 SBA sponsorship for Straight Talk that provides
technical assistance to MWBE businesses,

S Amount of MBE WBE Direct Assistance

2,000,000.0
1,500,000.0
1,000,000.0
500,000.0
2022 2023 2024

Vendor Operational Purchases: Purchases of $30,000 (18% MWBE)
were made from known M/WBEs out of total purchases = $171,000
(major categories of total purchases were printing/marketing, office
supplies/equipment, and IT services/hardware). A breakout of the
$30,000 in purchases included $19,000 (11.1%) from WBEs, $6,000
(3.5%) from MBEs, and $5,000 (3.2%) from MWBESs. This represents an
increase in annual spend of $2,200 (WBEs) and $1,800 (MBE). The
Agency also made purchases from four new M/WBE vendors.

revised 3/12/2025

-64-



Obijective 2C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Other Purchases:

Professional Services (engineering / design) utilization payments totaling
$240,948 were made to certified MWBE/SDVOB in 2024. These
payments are tracked on an ongoing basis to monitor the 30% contract
utilization goal for open contacts.

Construction Services utilization payments totaling $488,162 were made
to certified MWBE/SDVOB in 2024. These payments are tracked on an
ongoing basis to monitor the 30% contract utilization goal for open
contacts

Five RFP / Bids were issued in 2024 — 100% included a scoring value =
10% to be attributed to MWBE utilization and/or DEI initiatives. RFPs
included: ECIDA (& affiliates) Legal Services (1), Engineering Services
(2) and Construction Services (2).

Note: Professional Service and Construction RFPs included work for projects located at: the Erie

County AgriBusiness Park, 3445 River Rd and railroad sites managed by the ECIDA/ILDC. These
awarded RFPs totaled $617,000 with $204,000 (33%) to be spent with MWBE/SDVBOs.

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Support diversity, equity & inclusion with a focus
on staff development

Provide training opportunities re: Racial Equity

Provide two or more continued educational / training opportunities for
staff on DEI

Three DEI related continuing education / training opportunities were
offered to and attended by staff during 2024.

» 100% Staff participation for “Diversity in the Workplace” training as part of NYS
Sexual Harassment Training held on September 16th.

e 4 Staff members participate in BNP DEI Symposium on June 13th

o 1 staff member participated in the Diversity & Inclusion session as part of the
Amherst Chamber's Emerging Business Leaders (EBL) Program - August 16th

revised 3/12/2025

-65-



Objective 2D: ECIDA: Increase opportunities for minorities and women to experience
economic progress through tax incentive programs.

Measurement: Implementation of ECIDA Economic Inclusion Program (EIP) PILOT

Metric: 1 — 2 eligible projects (project includes property tax benefit, location
reasonably accessible to minority workforce) opt into the program.

Results: In 2024, seven projects were approved for tax incentives with three (3)
projects qualifying for participation in the EIP. Two of the three projects
opted into the program:

= First project to meet Tier 1 criteria: % MWBE goals for construction,
Applicant Job Creation Goals and two EIP Policy Goals.*

= Second project to meet Tier 2 criteria: % MWBE goals for construction,
Applicant Job Creation & Workforce Retention Goals, and one EIP
Policy Goal.*

* EIP Policy Goals focus on procurement, DEI practices, DEI training and mentorship

Objective 2E:  ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary levels.

Measurement: Average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For informational purposes
include salary info re: management, professional, administrative,
production, independent contractor and other

Metric*: Average salary for retained and created jobs at $ 50K - $55K

Results: In 2024, the average salary for the 699 FT Jobs (461 retained, 238 new)
= $70,693. The average salary for the 96 PT Jobs (47 retained, 49 new)
= $31,255 The total annual payroll amount = $52 M.

Category # of Jobs Average Salary w/ Fringe Average Salary w/o Fringe
Management 91 S 125,470 S 99,651
Professional 71 S 116,681 S 92,521
Administrative 70 S 68,196 S 57,649
Production 466 S 82,581 S 64,502
Independent Contractor 0 S - S -

| Other 1 S 58,000 S 45,000

revised 3/12/2025

-66-



Category # of Jobs Average Salary w/ Fringe Average Salary w/o Fringe
Management 0 S - S -
Professional 0 S - S -
Administrative 0 ) - S -
Production 96 S 33,115 S 31,255
Independent Contractor 0 $ - S -
Other 0 S - S -

*average salary metric is based on historical data with consideration given to market adjustments (i.e. inflation, cost of living) and
comparisons to County/ City of Buffalo living wage data. (note: include avg salaries in job categories and the total payroll amount).

Objective 2F:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to inform
them of ECIDA and other business support services available.

Measurement: Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing

Metric:

Results:

communication efforts)

290 business outreach contacts, 900,000 marketing impressions through
paid advertising. * Adjusted metric. Increase and report on targeted
business outreach efforts (i.e. through Chambers of Commerce) to reach
small and medium-sized businesses seeking financing when traditional
options become less available.

365 business outreach contacts included: 160 Business Development
(direct), 152 Professional Partners (direct) and 53 Events (participation).

Marketing & Communications activity included targeted paid advertising
campaigns on business radio and in print, totaling 3,912,724
impressions. Radio advertising and WBEN Facebook/Meta post
engagement were the main drivers in exceeding the 2024 goals for
impressions. Direct mailings of the ECIDA holiday calendar and Year in
Review reached approximately 1,100 business contacts. ECIDA social
media Facebook/Meta posts resulted in approximately 10,000
impressions on 33 organic and shared posts.

Efforts made to reach small and medium-sized businesses by ECIDA
staff members included:

14 Chamber of Commerce events: Amherst (including Emerging
Business Leaders program), Buffalo Niagara Partnership,
Cheektowaga, Lancaster, West Seneca, Tonawanda and Southtowns.

revised 3/12/2025

-67-



Objective 2G:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

2024 Highlights

22 Business Events: the Exchange at Beverly Gray, Black Developers,
BNMA, Business First Roundtable, Canadian Consulate Business Day,
Canisius Women’s Business Center, the Construction Exchange, LISC,
NAACP Business Task Force, NYSCAR, SBA Straight Talk

ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of redevelopment
and public/private investment amounts

350 acres of land under management

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), through its
development arm the Industrial Land Development Corporation (ILDC),
currently is managing approximately 486 acres of land. Land under
redevelopment efforts include 1) 240 acres at Renaissance Commerce
Park and 2) 240 acres at the Erie County Agribusiness Park. 3) 6 acres
at 3445 River Road. In 2024 ILDC executed a long-term lease
agreement with MRB Group for the development of a single storage
Battery Storage Facility. The ILDC's Business and Property Development
team assist companies seeking to identify suitable commercial real
estate options specific to the Renaissance Commerce Park and Erie
County Agribusiness Park. Business and developer interest in the parks
remains high, as demonstrated in the lead generation information listed
below, as is the activity on the site via several ongoing infrastructure

projects.

Site

Activities

Renaissance Commerce Park

e Completed and Closed on a Sale of Parcel #8 to Surco Sourcing for the Construction of a
Warehouse

*  Uniland 2 Steelworkers Way Facility Competed and Opened with 60% of Space Leased

¢ Completed the Installation of Water and Sewer Lines on the North End of the Property

*  Conducted and completed a Request for Proposal Process for the Redevelopment of Parcels
#2 and #3 into Light Manufacturing Space

¢ Completed 90% of the Design and Engineering of the Odell St. and Ridge Rd. Project
Completed 80% of the Design and Engineering for the WYE Yard Rail Relocation Project
Completed Process with Empire State Development to Establish the Property as a FAST NY
Shovel Ready Certified Site

¢  Completed the Construction of the Second Phase of Steelworkers Way

. Awarded $1,750,000 from Empire State Development for the Construction Phase of the WYE

Yard Rail Relocation Project
revised 3/12/2025

-68-



*  One of Fifteen Properties in New York State Included in a Site Asset Analysis by NYSERDA
and Global Location Strategies for Clean Energy Sector Projects — Property Received High
Marks from Analysis

Erie County Agri-business Park

e Completed Property Master Plan and SEQR Process
¢  Awarded Contract to LiRo Engineers, Inc. for the Design and Engineering of Phase 1 of the
Ag Park Access Road
o  Completed 90% of Design and Engineering of Project
o  Completed Demolition of Three Existing Buildings on Site to Make Room for
Access Road
e  Designed and Integrated Ag Park Logo via 19 Ideas

3445 River Road

e  Executed Long Term Lease Agreement with MN8 Group for the Development of a Battery

Storage Facility
o Received First Instaliment Payment from Company

Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade zone
(FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive by reducing,
eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated sites

A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $92 M moving through the
zone.

For year-end 2023, a total of 6 Active FTZ Sites with goods valued at
over $97.6M moved through the zone. This represents an increase of
nearly $5.6M from the prior year (2022). The increase in FTZ activity was
primarily driven by the Cummins Engine and Sucrose Sourcing sites. FTZ
#23 collected duties/tariffs on merchandise moved through the zone of
$11,841,459 , up $607,249 from 2022.

Foreign Trade Zone #23

$150.0 6.5
$100.0 P S — d
Lo il 5.5
$0.0 45
2021 2022 2023
e S Value of Goods # FTZ sites

*(note: due to the timing of the Annual Federal FTZ Reporting (June) — the prior year’s results are listed)

revised 3/12/2025

-69-



Goal 4: Regional & Business Resiliency:

Objective 4A: ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist businesses throughout Erie County.

Measurement: Provide a roadmap for business resiliency.

Metric:

Results:

Prepare an annual CEDS Performance Report for submission to U.S.
EDA to communicate Erie County’s major accomplishments in economic
and community development. Convene CEDS Implementation
Committee (public and private partners) 3x per year to share and collect
data and information regarding implementation of regional goals.

CEDS Annual Report was prepared and completed in the 1st quarter of
2024 (reflecting 2023 results). A request for updates to the 2024 CEDS
initiatives will be sent to CEDS committee members to gauge the progress
being made. Also, in 2024 ECIDA staff members initiated a re-launch of
quarterly Economic Development focused meetings (beginning in 1st Q
2025) whereby regional stakeholders (including CEDS participants) will
meet to share information about resources & programs, including CEDS
initiatives and to foster collaboration for future endeavors.

Objective 4B: ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County

Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate
household incomes.

Measurement: Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise Loan

Metric:

Results:

and other programs funded by Community Development Block Grant
funds

Approve 6-8 loans for $200,000, which represents the funds available for
lending from the Erie County Microenterprise Loan program. The ECIDA
will continue to service, support and market the lending program to the
eligible consortium communities.

ECIDA oversaw the approval of two (2) micro enterprise loans totaling
$70,000 with $32,000 in private investment. The ILDC received 5
applications for review during 2024. Application volume was down in
2024 due to the economic uncertainty both locally and nationally (election
year), high cost of goods and labor, and a tight labor market.

revised 3/12/2025

-70-



Goal 5: To safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and
transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO

requirements:

Objective 5A: ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and unpaid real
property tax policies.

Measurement: Collection and analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports for
all active projects, review of investment verifications, facilitate completion
of pay equity audits by Erie County Department of Public Advocacy
payments through the Erie County Commissioner of Real Property

Services
Metric: 100% compliance
Results: In 2024, two projects obtained a local labor waiver. Two out of three

projects have successfully completed their Pay Equity audits with no
adverse findings, while the third project's Pay Equity audit is still in
progress. 100% compliance unpaid real property tax policies and
investment confirmations. Compliance with employment retention and
creation will be assessed in Quarter 1, pending the receipt and analysis
of annual surveys.

Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the NYS Sales and Use Tax program.

Measurement: Monitor and review of clients’ ST-340 reporting forms against the amount
of the sales tax savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure
that the amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not
exceed the board approved amounts.

Metric: 100% client compliance

Results: One client exceeded their sales tax benefit — the overage has been
collected/remitted to NYS.

revised 3/12/2025

-71-



Objective 5C: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO'’s deadlines and regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budgets and
financial audits

Metric: 100% compliance

Results: The Agency is on track to meet filing requirements of the ABO’s 3/31/25
reporting deadline.

Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,
execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties & Responsibilities
forms, and completion of the required ABO board member training

Metric: 100% compliance

Results: 17 out of 19 ECIDA & RDC Board Members and 6 out 7 ILDC Board
Members have completed their board member training. There is one
vacancy on the board. The Agency is on track to meet the ABO's
reporting deadline of 3/31/25.

Objective 5E:  ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over
the financial reporting and assets of the organizations.

Measurement: Annual independent audit reports of all entities.
Metric: Audit opinions and management letter.

Results: ECIDA, RDC, and ILDC all received an unmodified opinion on their
respective audited financial statements, indicating that the statements
are fairly presented in all material respects. There were no management
letter comments for the year ended December 31, 2024.

revised 3/12/2025

-72-



Objective 5F:  RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration of
the CARES Act revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce: Economic
Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health of the RLF
administered by the RDC

Metric: Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.

Results: For the year ended December 31, 2023, a Level B risk rating was
assigned to the CARES Act RLF. 37 out of a possible 45 points were
earned. This resulted in an increase in reporting frequency to EDA, semi-
annual instead of annual. Maximum points were earned for overall RLF
management, while areas such as loan write-off ratio (written off loans
divided by total inactive loans) and the capital base index (original loan
funds divided by current loan funds) were scored lower. This was mainly
a result of one loan written off, combined with most loans paying very low
interest. Certain risk metrics (default rate, default rate over time, net RLF
income, and leverage ratio) are still suspended by EDA in response to
the coronavirus pandemic. The risk rating for the year ended December
31, 2024 is expected to be known mid-2025.

Governance Certification

1. Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes
2. Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?
Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors
3. If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when

appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint
responsible individuals.

revised 3/12/2025

-73-



Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority’s

mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood. the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

revised 3/12/2025

-74-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2025 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements
Approval Date of Goals: March 26, 2025
Approval Date of Results: Anticipated March 2026

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission
statement and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well
they are carrying out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all
public authorities utilize the following format to annually review their mission statement
and performance measures and publish a measurement report. This report is designed
to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information
and accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’s
website at https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade
resulting in a successful business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation and retention for businesses and individuals which improves the quality of life for
the residents of the region.

-75-



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A:

Measurement:
Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing incentives and
other economic development services to spur eligible development

projects.
Value of new private investments from tax incentives

$ 300 - $ 325 M in private investment from approved tax incentives.

Objective 1B: RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new businesses and

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 1C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

private-sector investment in working capital, machinery and equipment.

Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private investment for
loans approved

8 - 10 business loans totaling $ 3 M with private investment = $6 M.

ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to obtain
low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided to non-
profit organizations and qualified private activity bond projects. Continue
to monitor NYS Housing and Community Renewal regulations for
affordable housing projects that utilize 4% state and federal Low Income
Housing Tax Credits(LIHTC) restricting bond activity to only new
construction and its impact on this objective.

1 -2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 M — $35 M.

revised 1/30/2025

-76-



Obijective 1D:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Goal 2:

Objective 2A:

Measurement:
Metric:

Results:

ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private (grant) funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private investment.
Administer projects that have received grant funding.

Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted. Number and $
amount of grant funds under administration.

5-7 grants submitted for $6M - $7M. 7-10 grants totaling $75M under
administration.

To support business formation, job growth, and economic
expansion targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged
communities:

ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned, and
underutilized buildings.

Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects

3 - 4 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $50 - $75 M.

Objective 2B: ECIDA ILDC & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business,

as well as minority-owned, women-owned and service-disabled veteran
owned businesses (collectively MWBE/SDVOB).

Measurement: Number and $ amount of direct assistance through Agency’s product

Metric:

offerings to MWBE/SDVOB (i.e. business loans, tax incentives).
Procurement goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE/SDVOB vendors
for both operational (ECIDA) and other purchases.

Direct assistance: $400,000 direct assistance to 5 — 7 MWBE/SDVOBs.

Purchases: Meet 100% of the following:

1) RFPs and/or bids — RFPs and/or bids issued to contain a score
category (with a score value = 10%), whereby the MWBE/SDVOB
utilization and/or D&l initiatives = 30% of contract total.

revised 1/30/2025

-77-



2) Tracking / Reporting of $ value of purchases to monitor adherence to
30% MWBE/SDVORB utilization for ECIDA purchases (including but
not limited to: office supplies, catering and equipment leasing) as well
as for Land Development services: Professional & Construction

Results:

Objective 2C: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Support diversity, equity & inclusion with a focus
on staff development

Measurement: Provide training opportunities re: Racial Equity

Metric: Provide two or more continued educational / training opportunities for
staff on DEI

Results:

Objective 2D: ECIDA: Increase opportunities for minorities and women to experience
economic progress through tax incentive programs.

Measurement: Implementation of ECIDA Economic Inclusion PILOT

Metric: 1 — 2 eligible projects (project includes property tax benefit, location
reasonably accessible to minority workforce) opt into the program.

Results:

Objective 2E:  ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary levels.

Measurement. Average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For informational purposes
include salary info re: management, professional, administrative,
production, independent contractor and other

Metric: Average salary for retained and created jobs at $ 50K - $55K

Results:

revised 1/30/2025

-78-



Objective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 2G:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to inform
them of ECIDA and other business support services available.

Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing
communication efforts)

290 business outreach contacts, 2,000,000 marketing impressions
through paid advertising.

ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of redevelopment
and public/private investment amounts

350 acres of land under management

Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County's foreign trade zone
(FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive by reducing,
eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated sites

A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $700 M moving through the
zone.

*(note: due to the timing of the Annual Federal FTZ Reporting (June) — the prior year's results are listed)

revised 1/30/2025

-79.-



Goal 4: Regional & Business Resiliency:

Objective 4A:
Measurement:

Metric;

Results:

Obijective 4B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist businesses throughout Erie County.
Provide a roadmap for business resiliency.

Convene CEDS Implementation Committee (public & private partners)
annually (in Q4) to share and collect data/information regarding the
progress of regional goals and accomplishments in economic and
community development. Prepare an annual CEDS Performance Report
as an addendum to the 2022-2026 CEDS for submission to the EDA.

ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County
Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate

household incomes.

Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise Loan
& other programs funded by Community Development Block Grant funds

Administer the underwriting process leading to the approval of 6-8 loans
for $200,000, which represents the funds available for lending from the
Erie County Microenterprise Loan program. The ECIDA will continue to
service, support and market the lending program to the eligible
consortium communities.

revised 1/30/2025



Goal 5: To safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and
transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO

requirements:

Objective 5A: ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and unpaid real
property tax policies.

Measurement: Collection and analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports for
all active projects, review of investment verifications, facilitate completion
of pay equity audits by Erie County Department of Public Advocacy
payments through the Erie County Commissioner of Real Property
Services

Metric: 100% compliance

Results:

Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the NYS Sales and Use Tax program.

Measurement: Monitor and review of clients’ ST-340 reporting forms against the amount
of the sales tax savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure that
the amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not exceed

the board approved amounts.
Metric: 100% client compliance

Results:

Objective 5C: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO’s deadlines and regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budgets and
financial audits

Metric: 100% compliance

Resuits:

revised 1/30/2025

-81-



Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO regulatory
requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,
execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties & Responsibilities
forms, and completion of the required ABO board member training

Metric: 100% compliance
Resulits:
Objective 5E: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over

the financial reporting and assets of the organizations.
Measurement: Annual independent audit reports of all entities.

Metric: Audit opinions and management letter.

Objective 5F: RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration of
the CARES Act revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce: Economic
Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health of the RLF

administered by the RDC
Metric: Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.

Results:

revised 1/30/2025

-82-



Governance Certification

1.

Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes

Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?
Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint

responsibie individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’'s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority’s

mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

revised 1/30/2025

-83-



2024 ECIDA Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

12

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are
always consistent with this mission.

12

Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other to
these principles.

12

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices
for the effective governance, management and
operations of the Authority and reviews these annually.

13

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to accomplishing
its mission.

13

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at
through independent judgment and deliberation, free of
political influence, pressure or self-interest.

11

Individual Board members communicate effectively with
executive staff so as to be well informed on the status of
all important issues.

12

Board members are knowledgeable about the Authority's
programs, financial statements, reporting requirements,
and other transactions.

10

The Board meets to review and approve all documents
and reports prior to public release and is confident that
the information being presented is accurate and
complete.

13

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with state
law.

13

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
articipation of members.

12

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research,
discuss, question and prepare before decisions are
made and votes taken.

12

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they feel
additional information or discussion is required.

11

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEO
and other executive staff, including setting performance
expectations and reviewing performance annually.

12

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the
Authority and works with management to implement risk
mitigation strategies before problems occur.

12

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and
work respectfully with each other.

11

Note: The two criteria above were left blank and lack a response

Name of Authority: Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Date Completed: March 6, 2025

-84-



2024 RDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

12

1

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board are
always consistent with this mission.

12

Board members comprehend their roie and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other to
these principles.

12

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and practices
for the effective governance, management and
operations of the Authority and reviews these annually.

13

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to accomplishing
its mission.

13

The decisions made by Board members are arrived at
through independent judgment and deliberation, free of
political influence, pressure or self-interest.

11

Individual Board members communicate effectively
with executive staff so as to be well informed on the
status of all important issues.

12

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, reporting
requirements, and other transactions.

10

The Board meets to review and approve all documents
and reports prior to public release and is confident that
the information being presented is accurate and
complete.

13

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with state
law.

13

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
participation of members.

12

Board members have sufficient opportunity to research,
discuss, question and prepare before decisions are
made and votes taken.

12

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they feel
additional information or discussion is required.

1"

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the CEQO
and other executive staff, including setting performance
expectations and reviewing performance annually.

12

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to the
Authority and works with management to implement
risk mitigation strategies before problems occur.

12

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision and
work respectfully with each other.

11

Note: The two criteria above were left blank and lack a response

Name of Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Date Completed: March 6, 2025

-85-




2024 ILDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Some
what
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding of the
mission and purpose of the Authority.

5

The policies, practices and decisions of the Board
are always consistent with this mission.

5

Board members comprehend their role and fiduciary
responsibilities and hold themselves and each other
to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance, management
and operations of the Authority and reviews these
annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable performance
goals for the Authority that contribute to
accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are arrived
at through independent judgment and deliberation,
free of political influence, pressure or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate effectively
with executive staff so as to be well informed on the
status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, reporting
requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release and is
confident that the information being presented is
accurate and complete.

The Board knows the statutory obligations of the
Authority and if the Authority is in compliance with
state law.

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the active
participation of members.

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

Individual Board members feel empowered to delay
votes, defer agenda items, or table actions if they
feel additional information or discussion is required.

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of the
CEO and other executive staff, including setting
performance expectations and reviewing
performance annually.

The Board has identified the areas of most risk to
the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before problems
occur.

Board members demonstrate leadership and vision
and work respectfully with each other.

Name of Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Date Completed:  March 6, 2025

-86-




"BaJE Sy} U1 pajeonpa |jam sn dasy [asunoo [eba) pue yejg

‘me| )e}s yim soueldwod up si Ajuoyiny sy) ji pue
Aoyiny sy} jo suonebijgo Aiojnje)s ayy smouy pJeog ay |

"9)89|dwod pue 8jeindoe s) pajussald buiaq uoinewJoyul
9L} Jey} Juspluod s| pue ases|ad a1|qnd o} Joud suodal pue
SjUBWINJ0p |je aAoJdde pue maiasl 0) slesLw pieog ay |

"abpajmouy uieb o} sjqejiene siow saljunuoddQ (g)
"awn Aue je -padojanap si )i Jaje pue asojeq djqejieAe pue papinold si uonewloul |1y (2)

“S[eloueuy uo JaAo aze|B 0} Wads SIBqUWSW PIecq SWOS ‘DAoqe auy) o} Jepuwis (1)

‘suoljoesuel) Jayjo pue
‘Sjuswaiinbai Buiiodal ‘syuswaslels |eueuly ‘sweiboid
s Ajoyiny ay; Jnoge sjqeabpaimous| sie sisquiall pJeog

‘Hels Jojpue 039 ay) Aq Jeuuew aagew.oul pue Ajswi)
€ Ul 0} papuodsal usaq aAey sbujjesiu Jo apisjno payiwgns aAey | salinbui Jo suonsanb Auy (p)

"anJ) si siy) pue JjasAw Joj eads Ajuo ues | (g)
HEIS 8AIINdSXS pue pIeoq ay} UsaMS] PALIODJOM S| I PUE UOHEDIUNWLWIOD USdO S| asay] (z)

1SBOD 0} LUS3S OYM M3} B Sie 88U | "SAIEDIUNWIWOD AJSA BJE S1aquisw pJeoq JSop (1)

‘senss| juepodw) e
JO SNjels By} uo paLuIojul ||am 8 0} Se OS Jels aANIaxa
Yim AjAij08 Y9 91esjunwiwod siaquisw pieog [enpialpu|

‘Apuspuadapu sjoasoe ues Asy) os
uonewIojul J|e 8A19034 pue ‘suogsanb yse ‘malaau o} Ajunpoddo ue uaAlb si Jaquiaw pieoq yoeg

‘Jsaus)ut-yIes Jo ainssaud ‘@ouenpul jeanijod
J0 8844 ‘uoneJaqiiep pue Juswbpnl juspuadapul yBno.y)
Je paAlLIE Bl siaquiaw pjeog Aq apew SUoisIoap ay |

"UoISSIW
sl Bulysiidwoooe oy spnNqLIU0D Jey) Ajoyny auy) Joy
sjeob souew.oped g|qe.nsesw pue Jes sjes pleog ay)

ajendosdde
Se‘pJeoq sy} Jo uoyoe Aq PayipoOLL pue pamalass sl sonoesd pue smel-Aq sajoljod asay) Jesk yoeg

‘Allenuue asay) smaiaal pue Ajuoyiny ay)
J0 suonelado pue juswabeuew ‘9oueUIoA0D aAI10aY9 ay)
10} sednjoeud pue ‘smel-Aq ‘sajoljod pajdope sey pieog syl

"Suooe pue SUOISSNISIP 8y} Ul Pajesa)ial SI 901 §,pIe0q By JO Buipue)sIapun ay | (z)

SJaY10 Uey) siyj Je JoYaq ale siaquiatu preoq awos (1)

‘sa|diound ssayy
0} Jayjo yoes pue saAjaswial) pjoy pue sajijiqisuodsal
Aejonpy pue sjos siey) puayaidwos siequisw pleog

"SuofdE Jno aulwiisiep o) salljod Buisn Ajuelsuod ale app

"UOISSIW SIL} Y)M JUB)SISUOD shemje
SJe pieog ay} JO SuoIsioap pue saonoeld ‘saioljod ay |,

"‘Auoyny ay Jo asodind pue uoissiw
8y} Jo Buipueysiapun paJeys e sAey sIequSW PJeog

sjuswiwo)

epajLID

3dueWIOLISd pieod JO UOKEN|RAT [BUIPHUOYD JO SHNSIY AIBWIWING $Z0Z

-87-



§20Z '9 yoIe :pajsjdwo) sje(

(0a71) uoneiodio) JuSWdoeASq pue-] [eHjsSnpu] AJunos oig

? ojeyng pue (DQy) uonelodio) juswido[eAs( [euoibey AjUno) s[ig pue oEgng | vaio3) Aouaby jusiudojeAsq lemysnpuj Ajuno? aug Ajuoyiny

uoneziueB.o ay) Joj UOISIA Paleys e S| 218U} PUE Jay]o pue suo sjoadsal pleoq ay .

1810 yoea ypm Angoadsai yiom
pue uoIsIA pue diysiapes] ajes)SUoIBP S1aquISU pJeog

seonoe.d asay) Jo ale sieaquisw
PIEOq ||e aieme moy ainsup ‘jJuswebeuew pue Jybisiano Jo qof snopuswal) e S30p Yelg

"INd20 swe|qold aio4aq salbajels uonebiiw
%SH Juswe|dwi o) JuswaBeuew yum syiom pue Ajioyiny
S} 0] XS JSow jo seale sy} payuapl sey pieog ay |

"19A ssao0id
MalAal pue Bunies uonejoadxs ay) usas jou 9ABY pue Jaquiaw pieoq mau A[@anead e we | ()

‘pPainsesw pue paysiqelss
a.e sjeob aouewiopad fenuue pue Apejnbal PapIroLd aJe joeqpsas) pue aouewopad yeis (1)

‘Allenuue asuewlopad Bumalras pue suopejoadxa
aduew.opad Bumes Buipnjoul ‘yejs aanoaxa Jayjo pue
039 8y} Jo Jybissano sjendoidde sasioiaxa pieog ay )

"Ajjuspuadapui 1o 0} Jalileq ou s| 919Y) |99} |

"paJinbal S| uCISSNOSIP IO UOHEWIOUI
[euolippe [98) As) i suoioe 3|qe) Jo ‘swiay epusbe Jojep
‘sa)on Aejap 0} pasamodwia |99} SJaquis pieog |enpiaipu|

Inydjay A1aA pue pajiejep eie yoiym sbuiesw 40 @dueApe u| sjayoed pJeoq aA199a1 apA (1)
‘gaube An4 (g)
‘B|qejieA. apew AjIpeal s| uoneLLIou| |je o} SS90y (Z)

"Jjels ay) AQ yiom
POOD "S[elsjew pJeoq jo ssauljawy ayj u) Jusaaosdwi Buols umoys sey Jeak )sed siyj ()

‘ua)e) S9)J0A pue
apew ale suois|dap aJ0j8q aledald pue uolysanb ‘ssnosip
‘Yosessal 0} Ajunyoddo Juaioiyns aAey siaquisl pieog

‘Jequisw e sle Asy) Jayjaum o ssajpiebal Bunesw sa)IuWwoD
Aue o) swoojem ale pue sespIWWoD uof 0} BBeINOoUD pue pajiAul 3Je siaquiaw pieog

‘slaquiauwi
J0 uonedidiued aAljoe ay) pue ‘uoissnoasip yBno.oy) pue
8jetaqi|op ‘uUado ajeyjioe) sBunesw s8N0 pue pieog




Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2024 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation No . Comments
Pend
ending

1. Are the members of the Governance Committee 4 J ]
appointed in accordance with the Bylaws and are
individuals appointed to the Governance
Committee knowledgeable, or have expressed a
willingness to become knowledgeable, in matters
pertaining to governance?

2. Is each member of the Governance Committee an X ] O
“independent member” within the meaning of,
and to the extent required by, Section 2825 of the
New York Public Authorities Law, as amended
from time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the Agency,
comply with the conflict of interest provisions
applicable to public officers under Article 18 of
the New York General Municipal Law?

3. Did the Governance Committee meet a2 minimum 4 J ] The Governance Committee met on
of once (1) each calendar year? 1/31/24, 3/20/24, and 10/18/24.
4. Were meeting notices and agendas prepared for = ] O

each meeting and provided to Governance
Committee members by electronic or regular
mail at least five (5) days in advance of the
scheduled meeting? Were minutes of all
meetings recorded by the Secretary or any
Assistant Secretary of the Agency? Did all
meetings comply with the requirements of the
Open Meetings Law?

5. Did the Governance Committee develop the X ] ] See Questions #6-#9 below.
Agency’s governance practices, which should
address transparency, independence,
accountability, fiduciary responsibilities and
management oversight?

-89-



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

6.

Did the Governance Committee develop a
statement of the competencies and personal
attributes required of Board members to assist
those authorized to appoint members to the Board
in identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the Agency is
determined pursuant to Section 891-a of the
General Municipal Law)?

No

Comments

A Statement of the Competencies and
Personal Afttributes is posted on the
ECIDA website. It was approved by
the ECIDA Board of Directors on
2/16/10. Revisions to this document
were not necessary in 2024,

No additional committees were

7. Did the Governance Committee develop and ]
recommend to the Board any revisions to the recommended by the Governance
number and/or structure of Board committees? Committee in 2024,

8. Did the Governance Committee develop and ] New Board members attend an

provide recommendations to the Board regarding
Board member education, including new member
orientation and regularly scheduled Board
member training to be obtained from state-
approved trainers as required under Section
2824(2) of the New York Public Authorities
Law?

orientation session hosted by ECIDA
staff and are provided with a New
Member Orientation Manual.

As of 12/31/24, 17 of the 19
ECIDA/RDC Board members have
received the PAAA required training.
Note, there was one vacancy on the
ECIDA/RDC Board. 6 of 7 ILDC
Board members have received the
PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.

Did the Governance Committee develop, review
and recommend to the Board the adoption and/or
revisions to the following:

Items i) & ii) are included in the

(i) the Agency’s Code of Ethics. ECIDA Code of Ethics and Conflict of

(ii) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.

(iii) written policies regarding the protection of
whistleblowers from retaliation.

(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative action
policies.

(v) written policies regarding procurement of
goods and services, including policies relating to
the disclosure of persons who attempt to
influence the Agency’s procurement process.

dopted by the full Board during its
eeting on 3/27/24.

Er:terest Policy. The Code was re-

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The Policy was
re-adopted by the full Board during its
meeting on 3/27/24.

iv) The ECIDA’s EEO policy is
included in the Employee Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.

v) The ECIDA Procurement Policy
was re-adopted by the full Board
during its 3/27/24 meeting.

-90-




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Yes No

(vi) written policies regarding the disposition of
real and personal property and the acquisition of
property.

(vii) committee charters, including this Charter.

(viii) any other policies or documents relating to
the governance of the Agency, including rules
and procedures for conducting the business of the
Agency’s Board, including the Agency’s Bylaws.
The Governance Committee will oversee the
implementation and effectiveness of the Bylaws
and other governance documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as necessary or
appropriate.

Pending

Coniments

vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
Guidelines were re-adopted by the
full Board during its meeting on
3/27124.

vii) The ECIDA Governance
Committee Charter was re-adopted by
the full Board during its meeting on
3/27/24.

viii) The Governance Committee did
not approve any additional policies in
2024.

10. Did the Governance Committee: X ]

(i) report its actions and recommendations to the
Board at each regular meeting of the Board
following a meeting of the Governance
Committee and when otherwise requested by the
Board.

(ii) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this Charter.

(iii) provide a self-evaluation of the Governance
Committee’s functions to the Board on an annual
basis.

The Committee reports its actions and
recommendations to the Board
following each meeting.

i) & ii) As stated above, all policies/
guidelines referenced above were
adopted or re-adopted by the Board
on 3/27/24.

iif) On 3/20/24, the Committee
performed a Self-Evaluation for the
calendar year 2023 and provided a
status report to the Board on 3/27/24,

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

Other Self-Evaluation Notes

results of ECIDA’s 2023 Performance Measures.

ECIDA Mission Statement and 2024 Performance Measures.

meeting.

1. During its 1/31/24 and 3/20/24 meetings, the Governance Committee, ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the
2. During its 1/31/24 and 3/20/24 meetings, the Governance Committee, ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the

3. During its 3/20/24 meeting, the Governance Committee reviewed the 2023 Board evaluation for the ECIDA,
RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these evaluations during the 3/27/24 Board

4. In addition to the above reference policies, the Governance Committee re-adopted the following
ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies items during its meeting on 3/20/24: (a) Airborne Infectious Disease Policy, (b)
Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy, (c) Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest
Policy, (d) Defense & Indemnification Policy, (¢) ECIDA Employee Compensation Program, (f) Fee Structure

-91-



Policy (ECIDA & ILDC only), (g) Governance Committee charter, (h) Procurement Policy (i) Professional
Services RFP Process and Policy, (j) Property Disposition Guidelines, (k) Real Property Acquisition Policy, (1)
Sexual Harassment Policy, (m) Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors, (n) Statement
of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members, (o) Travel, Conferences, Meals & -
Entertainment Policy, (p) Whistleblower Policy. The policies were approved by the full Board during its 3/27/24

meeting.

During its 3/20/24 meeting, the ECIDA staff provided the Governance Committee with a status update on the
ECIDA’s Public Authority Reporting Information System (PARIS) report and board member PAAA training

update.

During its 10/18/24 meeting, the Governance Committee reviewed the recommendations for professional legal
services. The professional legal services recommendations were forwarded to the ECIDA Board for approval as

follows:
a. General Counsel: Harris Beach Murtha (primary), Hurwitz Fine (conflict)
b. Tax Exempt Bond Counsel: Hodgson Russ (primary), Harris Beach Murtha (conflict)
¢. Loan Counsel: Hurwitz Fine (primary), Harris Beach Murtha (conflict)

During its 10/23/24 meeting, the full Board approved to enter into contracts with the above-mentioned law firms.
The contracts will be for a period of three years, with 2 one-year extensions available (can be exercised with
Governance Committee approval).

-92.




Model Airborne Infectious Disease

- :f%ﬁk ?f-‘-.’,_abor-! e Exposure Prevention Plan

The purpose of this plan is to protect employees against exposure and disease during an airborne infectious disease
outbreak. This plan goes into effect when an airborne infectious disease is designated by the New York State
Commissioner of Health as a highly contagious communicable disease that presents a serious risk of harm to the
public health. This plan is subject to any additional or greater requirements arising from a declaration of a state of
emergency due to an airborne infectious disease, as well as any applicable federal standards.

Employees should report any questions or concerns with the implementation this plan to the designated contact.

This plan applies to all “employees” as defined by the New York State Labor Law 218-b, which means any person
providing labor or services for remuneration for a private entity or business within the state, without regard to an
individual’s immigration status, and shall include part-time workers, independent contractors, domestic workers,
home care and personal care workers, day laborers, farmworkers and other temporary and seasonal workers.
The term also includes individuals working for digital applications or platforms, staffing agencies, contractors or
subcontractors on behalf of the employer at any individual work site, as well as any individual delivering goods

or transporting people at, to or from the work site on behalf of the employer, regardless of whether delivery or
transport is conducted by an individual or entity that would otherwise be deemed an employer under this chapter.
The term does not include employees or independent contractors of the state, any political subdivision of the
state, a public authority, or any other governmental agency or instrumentality.

CONTENTS

{. RESPONSIBILITIES
ll. EXPOSURE CONTROLS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
A. Minimum Controls During an Outbreak
B. Advanced Controls During an Qutbreak
C. Exposure Control Readiness, Maintenance and Storage:
. HOUSEKEEPING DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
IV. INFECTION RESPONSE DURING A DESIGNATED QOUTBREAK
V. TRAINING AND INFORMATION DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
VI. PLAN EVALUATIONS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK
VII. RETALIATION PROTECTIONS AND REPORTING OF ANY VIOLATIONS

O 0 N N NN NN

-93-



RESPONSIBILITIES
Erie County industrial Development Agency

This plan applies to all employees of , and [alll/[the following work sites]:

95 Perry Street, Buffalo, New York 14203

This plan requires commitment to ensure compliance with all plan elements aimed at preventing the spread of
infectious disease. The following supervisory employee(s) are designated to enforce compliance with the plan.
Additionally, these supervisory employees will act as the designated contacts unless otherwise noted in this plan:

Name Title Location Phone

Mollie Profic CFO 95 Perry Street, Buffalo, New York 14203 |716.362.8380

EXPOSURE CONTROLS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

. MINIMUM CONTROLS DURING AN OUTBREAK

During an airborne infectious disease outbreak, the following minimum controls will be used in all areas of the
worksite:

1. General Awareness: Individuals may not be aware that they have the infectious disease and can spread it to
others. Employees should remember to:

« Maintain physical distancing;
- Exercise coughing/sneezing etiquette;
« Wear face coverings, gloves, and personal protective equipment (PPE), as appropriate;

Individuals limit what they touch;
+ Stop social etiquette behaviors such as hugging and hand shaking, and
- Wash hands properly and often.

2. “Stay at Home Policy”: If an employee develops symptoms of the infectious disease, the employee should
not be in the workplace. The employee should inform the designated contact and follow New York State
Department of Health (NYSDOH)and Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidance regarding
obtaining medical care and isolating.

3. Health Screening: Employees will be screened for symptoms of the infectious disease at the beginning of their
shift. Employees are to self-monitor throughout their shift and report any new or emerging signs or symptoms
of the infectious disease to the designated contact. An employee showing signs or symptoms of the infectious
disease should be removed from the workplace and should contact a healthcare professional for instructions.
The health screening elements will follow guidance from NYSDOH and CDC guidance, if available.

-94-



4. Face Coverings: When in use, face coverings must cover the nose and mouth, and fit snugly, but comfortably,

against the face. The face covering itself must not create a hazard (e.g., have features could get caught in
machinery or cause severe fogging of eyewear). The face coverings must be kept clean and sanitary and
changed when soiled, contaminated, or damaged.

. Physical Distancing: Physical distancing will be used, to the extent feasible, as advised by guidance from State
Department of Health or the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, as applicable.

in situations where prolonged close contact with other individuals is likely, use the following control methods: (Note to
employer: Check off the controls you intend to use and add any additional controls not listed here.)

« restricting or limiting customer or visitor entry;,
« limiting occupancy;
- allowing only one person at a time inside small enclosed spaces with poor ventilation;

reconfiguring workspaces;

physical barriers;

+ sighage;

« floor markings;

« telecommuting;

- remote meetings;

- preventing gatherings;

« restricting travel;

» creating new work shifts and/or staggering work hours;
« adjusting break times and lunch periods;

- delivering services remotely or through curb-side pickup;
Convert internal & external in-person meetings to an online format whenever possible (comply with public meetings laws).

. Hand Hygiene: To prevent the spread of infection, employees should wash hands with soap and water for at
least 20 seconds or use a hand sanitizer with at least 60% alcohol to clean hands BEFORE and AFTER:

« Touching your eyes, nose, or mouth;
« Touching your mask;
+ Entering and leaving a public place; and

» Touching an item or surface that may be frequently touched by other people, such as door handles, tables, gas
pumps, shopping carts, or electronic cashier registers/screens.

Because hand sanitizers are less effective on soiled hands, wash hands rather than using hand sanitizer when
your hands are soiled.

. Cleaning and Disinfection: See Section V of this plan.

-95.



. “Respiratory Etiquette™: Because infectious diseases can be spread by droplets expelied from the mouth

and nose, employees should exercise appropriate respiratory etiquette by covering nose and mouth when
sneezing, coughing or yawning.

. Special Accommodations for Individuals with Added Risk Factors: Some employees, due to age, underlying

health condition, or other factors, may be at increased risk of severe illness if infected. Please inform your
supervisor or the HR department if you fall within this group and need an accommodation.

. ADVANCED CONTROLS DURING AN OUTBREAK

For activities where the Minimum Controls alone will not provide sufficient protection for employees, additional
controls from the following hierarchy may be necessary. Employers should determine if the following are
necessary:

1.

Elimination: Employers should consider the temporary suspension or elimination of risky activities where
adequate controls could not provide sufficient protection for employees.

Engineering Controls: Employers should consider appropriate controls to contain and/or remove the infectious
agent, prevent the agent from being spread, or isolate the worker from the infectious agent. Examples of
engineering controls include:

i. Mechanical Ventilation:
a. Local Exhaust Ventilation, for example:
« Ventilated booths (lab hoods);
+ Kitchen Vents; and
« Vented biosafety cabinets.

b. General Ventilation, for example:

- Dedicated ventilation systems for cooking areas, malls, atriums, surgical suites, manufacturing,
welding, indoor painting, laboratories, negative pressure isolation rooms;

« Increasing the percentage of fresh air introduced into air handling systems;
- Avoiding air recirculation;
» Using higher-efficiency air filters in the air handling system;
- If fans are used in the facility, arrange them so that air does not blow directly from one worker to
another; and
ii. Natural Ventilation, for example:
« Opening outside windows and doors to create natural ventilation; and

« Opening windows on one side of the room to let fresh air in and installing window exhaust fans on the
opposite side of the room so that they exhaust air outdoors. (Note: This method is appropriate only if air will
not blow from one person to another.)

jii. Install automatic disinfection systems (e.g., ultraviolet light disinfection systems).
iv. Install cleanable barriers such as partitions and/or clear plastic sneeze/cough guards.

v. Change layout to avoid points or areas where employees may congregate (e.g., install additional timeclocks).

Subject to changes based on operations and circumstances surrounding the infectious disease, engineering
controls that are anticipated to be used are listed in the following table:

-96-



Engineering Controls Utilized/Location:

The building is owned by Savarino - our contact is Julia Spitz, EVP. Julia has indicated that our facility Iis currently

using the highest grade filters compatible with the HVAC system. Filters are changed quarterly. We have access to an

outside door (patio door) that can be opened to increase air flow from outside. Should any air quality concerns arise,

the ability to work from home remains as a viable option for staff.

Note to Employer: One of the best ways to reduce exposure to infectious agents is to improve ventilation. The aim is to deliver
more “clean air” into an occupied area and exhaust the contaminated air to a safe location. In some cases, the air may have to
be filtered before it enters the work area and/or before it is exhausted. Direct the contaminated air away from other individuals
and from the building’s fresh air intake ports. Consult your ventilation system’s manufacturer or service company to determine if
improvements are possible for your system.

3. “Administrative Controls” are policies and work rules used to prevent exposure. Examples include:

Increasing the space between workers;

» Slowing production speed to accommodate fewer workers at a time;

- Disinfecting procedures for specific operations;

» Not shaking out soiled laundry;

« Employee training;

+ ldentify and prioritize job functions that are essential for continuous operations;
« Cross-train employees to ensure critical operations can continue during worker absence;
» Limit the use of shared workstations;

- Post signs reminding employees of respiratory etiquette, masks, handwashing;
- Rearrange traffic flow to allow for one-way walking paths;

- Provide clearly designated entrance and exits;

- Provide additional short breaks for handwashing and cleaning;

- Establishing pods or cohorts working on same shift;

-97-



Subject to changes based on operations and circumstances surrounding the infectious disease, the following
specific administrative controls are anticipated to be used:

Administrative Controls Utilized/Location:

A subset of the administrative contracts as noted above would be deployed as needed.

4. 10. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) are devices like eye protection, face shields, respirators, , and gloves
that protect the wearer from infection. PPE will be provided, used and maintained in a sanitary and reliable
condition at no cost to the employee. The PPE provided to an employee will be based on a hazard assessment

for the workplace.

PPE Required - Activity Involved/Location:

PPE as noted above would be required (as/ if deemed necessary) at no cost to employees.

1 The use of respiratory protection, e.g. an N95 filtering facepiece respirator, requires compliance with the OSHA Respiratory
Protection Standard 29 CFR 1910.134 or temporary respiratory protection requirements OSHA allows for during the infectious

disease outbreak.

2 Respirators with exhalation valves will release exhaled droplets from the respirators. Respirators are designed to protect the
wearer. Surgical masks and face coverings, which are not respirators, are designed to protect others, not the weorer.

C. EXPOSURE CONTROL READINESS, MAINTENANCE AND STORAGE:

The controls we have selected will be obtained, properly stored, and maintained so that they are ready for
immediate use in the event of an infectious disease outbreak and any applicable expiration dates will be properly

considered.

-98-



. HOUSEKEEPING DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

A.

Disinfection Methods and Schedules

Objects that are touched repeatedly by multiple individuals, such as door handles, light switches, control
buttons/levers, dials, levers, water faucet handles, computers, phones, or handrails must be cleaned frequently
with an appropriate disinfectant. Surfaces that are handled less often, or by fewer individuals, may require less

frequent disinfection.
The disinfection methods and schedules selected are based on specific workplace conditions.

The New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC)and the Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) have compiled lists of approved disinfectants that are effective against many infectious
agents (see dec.ny.gov and epa.gov/pesticide-registration/selected-epa-registered-disinfectants). Select
disinfectants based on NYSDOH and CDC guidance and follow manufacturer guidance for methods, dilution,
use, and contact time.

. Adjustments to Normal Housekeeping Procedures

Normal housekeeping duties and schedules should continue to be followed during an infectious disease
outbreak, to the extent practicable and appropriate consistent with NYSDOH and/or CDC guidance in effect at
the time. However, routine procedures may need to be adjusted and additional cleaning and disinfecting may

be required.

Housekeeping staff may be at increased risk because they may be cleaning many potentially contaminated
surfaces. Some housekeeping activities, like dry sweeping, vacuuming, and dusting, can resuspend into the
air particles that are contaminated with the infectious agent. For that reason, alternative methods and/or
increased levels of protection may be needed.

Rather than dusting, for example, the CDC recommends cleaning surfaces with soap and water before
disinfecting them. Conducting housekeeping during “off” hours may also reduce other workers’ exposures to
the infectious agent. Best practice dictates that housekeepers should wear respiratory protection. See cdc.gov

for more guidance.

. If an employee develops symptoms of the infectious disease at work, it is ideal to isolate the area in

accordance with guidance issued by NYSDOH or the CDC, before cleaning and disinfecting the sick
employee’s work area. This delay will allow contaminated droplets to settle out of the air and the space to be

ventilated.

. As feasible, liners should be used in trash containers. Empty the containers often enough to prevent overfilling.

Do not forcefully squeeze the air out of the trash bags before tying them closed. Trash containers may contain
soiled tissue or face coverings.

IV. INFECTION RESPONSE DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

If an actual, or suspected, infectious disease case occurs at work, take the following actions:

. Instruct the sick individual to wear a face covering and leave the worksite and follow NYSDOH/CDC guidance.

. Follow local and state authority guidance to inform impacted individuals.

V. TRAINING AND INFORMATION DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

A.

_ B will verbally inform all employees of the existence and location
of this Plan, the circumstances it can be activated, the infectious disease standard, employer policies, and
employee rights under the New York State Labor Law 218-b. (Note: training need not be provided to the
following individuals: any individuals working for staffing agencies, contractors or subcontractors on behalf of
the employer at any individual work site, as well as any individual delivering goods or transporting people at,
to or from the work site on behalf of the employer, where delivery or transport is conducted by an individual or
entity that would otherwise be deemed an employer under this chapter)

-99_



B. When this plan is activated, all personnel will receive training which will cover all elements of this plan and the
following topics:

1. The infectious agent and the disease(s) it can cause;,

. The signs and symptoms of the disease;

. How the disease can be spread,;

. An explanation of this Exposure Prevention Plan;

. The activities and locations at our worksite that may involve exposure to the infectious agent;

O W N

. The use and limitations of exposure controls
7. A review of the standard, including employee rights provided under Labor Law, Section 218-B.

C. The training will be

1. Provided at no cost to employees and take place during working hours. If training during normal work
hours is not possible, employees will be compensated for the training time (with pay or time off);

2. Appropriate in content and vocabulary to your educational level, literacy, and preferred language; and
3. Verbally provided in person or through telephonic, electronic, or other means.

VI. PLAN EVALUATIONS DURING A DESIGNATED OUTBREAK

The employer will review and revise the plan periodically, upon activation of the plan, and as often as needed to
keep up-to-date with current requirements. Document the plan revisions below:

Plan Revision History

Dste Reviewed and Revised by Major Changes Approved By
Sl Enter date the original plan is created
il s B

Adopted 9 P

Staff Enter date the plan is made available,
Trained posted, and staff trained

Plan .
Revised

Staff Enter date the revised plan is made available,
Trained and staff updated to changes

Plan B
Revised

Staff Enter date the revised plan is made available,
Trained and staff updated to changes

Plan L
Revised

Staff Enter date the revised plan is made available, |
Trained and staff updated to changes

Plan .|
Revised — |

Staff Enter date the revised plan is made available,
Trained and staff updated to changes

-100-



VIl. RETALIATION PROTECTIONS AND REPORTING OF ANY VIOLATIONS

No employer, or his or her agent, or person, , acting as or on behalf of a hiring entity, or the officer or agent of
any entity, business, corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, shall discriminate, threaten, retaliate
against, or take adverse action against any employee for exercising their rights under this plan, including
reporting conduct the employee reasonably believes in good faith violates the plan or airborne infectious
disease concerns to their employer, government agencies or officials or for refusing to work where an employee
reasonably believes in good faith that such work exposes him or her, other workers, or the public to an
unreasonabile risk of exposure, provided the employee, another employee, or representative has notified the
employer verbally or in writing, including electronic communication, of the inconsistent working conditions and
the employer’s failure to cure or if the employer knew or should have known of the consistent working conditions.

Notification of a violation by an employee may be made verbally or in writing, and without limitation to format
including electronic communications. To the extent that communications between the employer and employee
regarding a potential risk of exposure are in writing, they shall be maintained by the employer for two years after
the conclusion of the designation of a high risk disease from the Commissioner of Health, or two years after the
conclusion of the Governor’s emergency declaration of a high risk disease. Employer should include contact
information to report violations of this plan and retaliation during regular business hours and for weekends/other

non-regular business hours when employees may be working.

Restated and re-adopted this 26th day of March 2025 by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced above.

-101-



Department
of Labor

NEW
YORK
STATE

P765 (10/24)

-102-




Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo
and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”) and
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(“ILDC”)

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION LAW (“FOIL”) POLICY

Section 1 Applicability

(a) This FOIL Policy (“Policy”) shall apply to Erie County Industrial
Development Agency and all of its affiliates, including: Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (“RDC”); Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (“ILDC”) and such other affiliates as may hereafter be established by the Agency
and which are determined to be subject to the requirements of Section 2925 of the Public
Authorities Law (an “ECIDA Affiliate”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”)
upon approval by the respective Boards of each corporation. Unless otherwise indicated, all
references to the “Agency” herein shall also include the ECIDA Affiliates.

Section 2 Purpose

(a) This policy provides information concerning the procedures by which members of
the public may access records of the Agency in accordance with the New York State Freedom of

Information Law (“FOIL”).

(b)  The Agency will furnish to the public the information and records required to be
disclosed by the New York State FOIL (Article 6, Sections 84-90, of the Public Officers Law),
and other applicable regulations. The FOIL gives members of the public the right to access
government records, with certain exceptions. The full text of the FOIL law, guidance issued by the
New York State Committee on Open Government, and other information about the law can be
found on the Committee’s website, http:/www.dos.ny.gov/coog/index.html

Section 3 Designation of Records Access Officer.

(a) The Agency shall designate, from time to time, a person from whom such Agency
records may be obtained (the “Records Access Officer”™).

(b)  The Records Access Officer is responsible for insuring appropriate Agency
response to public requests for access to records.

The Records Access Officer shall insure that Agency personnel:

(1) Maintain an up-to-date subject matter list reasonably detailing all records in
the possession of the Agency, whether or not available under FOIL.

2) Maintain a record setting forth the name, public office address, title, and

salary of every officer or employee of the Agency.
1

-103-



Section 4 Hours for Public Inspection and Location

(a) The Agency shall accept requests for public access to records and produce records
during regular business hours.

(b)  The Record Access Officer shall designate the locations where records shall be
available for public inspection and copying.

Section 5§ Requests for Public Access to Records.

(a) All requests for Agency records shall be made in writing to the Record Access
Officer through:

(1) direct mail or electronic mail or facsimile, at the Agency’s post office address,
email address or fax number, or

(2) the online FOIL request form on the Agency’s website at
https://www.ecidany.com/

(b)  All requests for access to records shall:

(1) contain the name and contact information of the requestor, including, if possible,
a telephone number and mailing address, and

(2) include a detailed description of the records that are being sought including, but
not limited to, dates, titles, file designations, or any other information that will assist the
Agency in locating the requested records.

(c) The Agency shall respond within five business days of receipt of a request by:

(1) informing a person requesting records that the request or portion of the
request does not reasonably describe the records sought, including direction, to the extent possible,
that would enable that person to request records reasonably described;

(2) granting or denying access to records in whole or in part;

3) acknowledging the receipt of a request in writing, including an approximate
date when the request will be granted or denied in whole or in part, which shall be reasonable
under the circumstances of the request and shall not be more than twenty business days after the
date of the acknowledgment, or if it is known that circumstances prevent disclosure within twenty
business days from the date of such acknowledgment, providing a statement in writing indicating
the reason for inability to grant the request within that time and a date certain, within a reasonable
period under the circumstances of the request, when the request will be granted in whole or in part;
or

4) if the receipt of request was acknowledged in writing and included an
approximate date when the request would be granted in whole or in part within twenty business
days of such acknowledgment, but circumstances prevent disclosure within that time, providing a

2

-104-



statement in writing within twenty business days of such acknowledgment specifying the reason
for the inability to do so and a date certain, within a reasonable period under the circumstances of

the request, when the request will be granted in whole or in part.

(d)  In determining a reasonable time for granting or denying a request under the
circumstances of a request, personnel shall consider the volume of a request, the ease or difficulty
in locating, retrieving or generating records, the complexity of the request, the need to review
records to determine the extent to which they must be disclosed, the number of requests received
by the Agency, the Agency’s indexing and retrieval system, and similar factors that bear on the
ability to grant access to records promptly and within a reasonable time.

Section 6 Denial of Access to Records.

(a) Denial of access to records shall be in writing stating the reason therefor and
advising the requestor of the right to appeal to the individual established to determine appeals, who
shall be identified by name, title, business address and business phone number.

(b) The Agency shall designate, from time to time, a person to whom appeals shall be
submitted.

(c) Any person denied access to records may appeal within thirty days of a denial.

(d) The time for deciding an appeal by the individual to determine appeals shall
commence upon receipt of a written appeal identifying:

(1) the date and location of requests for records;
2) a description, to the extent possible, of the records that were denied; and
3) the name and return address of the person denied access.

(e) A failure to determine an appeal within ten business days of its receipt by granting
access to the records sought or fully explaining the reasons for further denial in writing shall
constitute a denial of the appeal.

® The person designated to determine appeals shall transmit to the Committee on
Open Government copies of all appeals upon receipt of appeals. Such copies shall be addressed
to:

Committee on Open Government
Department of State
One Commerce Plaza, 99 Washington Ave, Suite 650
Albany, NY 12231

(2) The person designated to determine appeals shall inform the appellant and the
Committee on Open Government of its determination in writing within ten business days of receipt
of an appeal. The determination shall be transmitted to the Committee on Open Government in the

same manner as set forth in subdivision (f) of this section.
3

-105-



Section 7 Employee Notification of Release of Disciplinary Record
(a) For the purposes of this Section 7, the term “Disciplinary Record” shall mean and refer to

those records set forth by Section 86(6) of the Public Officers Law, including any record created
in furtherance of a law enforcement disciplinary proceeding, including, but not limited to:

(1)  the complaints, allegations, and charges against an Employee;
(2)  the name of the Employee complained of or charged,

(3)  the transcript of any disciplinary trial or hearing, including any exhibits
introduced at such trial or hearing;

4) the disposition of any disciplinary proceeding; and

(5)  the final written opinion or memorandum supporting the disposition and
discipline imposed including the Agency’s complete factual findings and its analysis of the
conduct and appropriate discipline of the covered Employee.

(b)  Pursuant to and in accordance with the requirements of Section 87(6) of FOIL, in
the event the Agency is responding to a request for the Disciplinary Record of a current or former
employee of the Agency (in each instance, an “Employee™) pursuant to this Policy and/or FOIL,

the Agency shall provide written notification of said response to such Employee (the “Employee
Notice”) at the same time the response is released to the submitter of such request.

Section 8 Fees.
(a) There shall be no fee charged for:
(1)  inspection of records;
2) search for records; or
3) any certification of records.
(b)  Fees for copies may be charged, provided that:

1) the fee for copying records shall not exceed 25 cents per page for
photocopies not exceeding 9 by 14 inches;

2) the fee for photocopies of records in excess of 9 x 14 inches shall not exceed
the actual cost of reproduction.

(c)  The actual cost of production that may be charged by the Agency for producing
records may include only the following:

-106-



(1)  an amount equal to the hourly salary attributed to the lowest paid employee
who has the necessary skill required to prepare a copy of the requested record if more than
two hours of the employee’s time is necessary to do so; and

(2)  the actual cost of the storage devices provided to the person making the
request in complying with such request; or

(3)  the actual cost to the Agency of engaging an outside professional service to
prepare a copy of a record, but only when Agency’s information technology equipment is
inadequate to prepare a copy, and if such service is used to prepare the copy.

(d) The Agency has the authority to redact portions of a paper record and may do so
prior to disclosure of the record by making a photocopy from which the proper redactions are
made.

(e) The Agency shall inform a person requesting a record of the estimated cost of
preparing a copy of the record if more than two hours of an Agency employee’s time is needed, or
if it is necessary to retain an outside professional service to prepare a copy of the record.

§3) The Agency may require that the fee for copying or reproducing a record be paid
in advance of the preparation of such copy.

(g) In the sole discretion of the Chief Executive Officer/President of the Agency, a
determination to waive a fee for copying or reproducing a record may be granted in the instance
where Agency staff has spent more than two hours of employee time to prepare a copy of the
record requested, excluding search time.

Adopted this 26th day of March, 2025.

-107-



Property Disposition Guidelines
of the
Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”) and each ECIDA
Affiliate (as defined herein) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) are
required by Section 2896 of the Public Authorities Law to adopt by resolution
comprehensive guidelines regarding the use, awarding, monitoring and reporting of
contracts for the disposal of Property (as defined herein). The following guidelines
(“Guidelines”) are adopted upon approval by the respective Boards or Members of each
corporation pursuant to such requirement and are applicable with respect to the use,
awarding, monitoring and reporting of all Property Disposition Contracts which are
entered into by the Agency.

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

1. “Contracting Officer” shall mean an officer or employee of ECIDA
appointed by resolution of the Board of Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate to be responsible for the disposition of Property of ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate.

2. “Dispose” or “disposal” or “disposition™ shall mean the transfer of title or
any other beneficial interest in Property from ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate to any
unrelated third party.

3. “ECIDA Affiliate” shall mean the following organizations:
(1) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation;

(ii) Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation;

(iii)  such other affiliated entities of ECIDA as may hereafter be

established by ECIDA and which are determined to be subject to
the requirements of Section 2896 of the Public Authorities Law.

-108-



4. “Property” shall mean personal property in excess of Five Thousand
Dollars ($5,000.00) in value, real property, or any other legally transferable interest in
such property, to the extent that such interest may by conveyed to another person for any
purpose, excluding an interest securing a loan or other financial obligation of another

party.

5. “Property Disposition Contracts” shall mean written agreements for the
sale, lease, transfer or other disposition of Property from ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate
to any unrelated third party.

6. “Real Property” shall mean real property and interests therein.

ARTICLE 11
APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF CONTRACTING OFFICER

A. Appointment

The Contracting Officer shall be an officer or employee of ECIDA appointed by
the Board of Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate who is
responsible for the supervision and direction over the custody, control and disposition of
Property and responsible for ECIDA’s compliance with and enforcement of these
Guidelines. The Contracting Officer is the Treasurer/Chief Financial Officer of ECIDA.

B. Duties
The duties of the Contracting Officer shall include the following:

1. Maintaining adequate inventory controls and accountability systems for all
Property under the control of ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate.

2. Periodically conducting an inventory of Property to determine which
Property may be disposed of.

3. Preparing an annual written report of all Property of ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate. Each report shall include a list of all Real Property, a full description of
all real and personal property disposed of during the reporting period, the price received
and the name of the purchaser for all Property sold during each reporting period. Each
report shall be completed and delivered to the New York State Comptroller, the Director
of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services and the New York State Legislature
no later than ninety (90) days following the completion of the fiscal year of ECIDA and
each ECIDA Affiliate.

4. Disposing of Property as promptly as possible in accordance with these
Guidelines, as directed by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate.

-109-



ARTICLE I
PROPERTY DISPOSITION REQUIREMENTS

A, Method of Disposition

Subject to such exceptions and/or requirements set forth in these Guidelines, in the
event that ECIDA or an ECIDA Affiliate determines to dispose of any of its Property,
ECIDA or the ECIDA Affiliate (as applicable) shall endeavor to dispose of such Property
for at least the fair market value of the Property. The disposition of Property may be
made by sale, exchange, or transfer, for cash, credit or other Property, with or without
warranty, and upon such terms and conditions as are determined by ECIDA or the
applicable ECIDA Affiliate to be appropriate and reasonable and consistent with these
Guidelines. Provided, however, no disposition of real property shall be made unless an
appraisal of the value of such property has been made by an independent appraiser and
included in the record of the transaction.

B. Award and Approval of Property Disposition Contracts

1. Compliance with Guidelines; Approval Requirements. All dispositions of
Property shall be conducted in accordance with these Guidelines by or under the
supervision of the Contracting Officer, subject to approval of the Board of Directors or
Members of the ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate where appropriate.

2. Disposition by Public Bid.

(a) All Property Disposition Contracts may be made only after
publicly advertising for bids, unless the criteria set forth in Article ITI(B)(3) below has
been satisfied for such contracts to be made by negotiation or public auction.

(b)  Whenever public advertising for bids is required, (i) the
advertisement for bids shall be made at such time prior to the disposal or contract,
through such methods, and on such terms and conditions, as shall permit full and free
competition consistent with the value and nature of the Property; (ii) all bids shall be
publicly disclosed at the time and place stated in the advertisement; and (iii) the award
shall be made with reasonable promptness by notice to the responsible bidder whose bid,
conforming to the invitation for bids, will be most advantageous to ECIDA, the
applicable ECIDA Affiliate and New York State, price and other factors considered.

(c) Any public bid for the disposition of Property may be rejected,

refused, or declined by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate on any basis or ground
allowable at law.

-110-



3. Disposition by Negotiated Sale/Public Auction. The following dispositions are
exempt and excepted from the public bidding requirements set forth above in Article
HI(B)(2) and may be consummated through a negotiated sale or by public auction:

(a) Circumstances _permitted for below FMYV Disposition. The
circumstances that would permit a below FMV disposition as set forth in Article
HI(B)(5)(a)(i),(ii) and (iii) below regardless of whether the disposition is above, at or
below FMV.

(b)  Disposition of Certain Personal Property. ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of personal property where such personal property
involved has qualities separate from the utilitarian purpose of such property, such as
artistic quality, antiquity, historical significance, rarity or other quality of similar effect,
that would tend to increase its value, or if the personal property is to be sold in such
quantity that, if it were to be disposed of through public advertisement and bidding,
would adversely affect the state or local market for such personal property.

(c) Disposition of Low FMV Property. ECIDA and each ECIDA
Affiliate may dispose of Property the fair market value of which does not exceed Fifteen
Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00).

(d)  Disposition Following Receipt of Unacceptable Bid Prices.
ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property where the bid prices
received by ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate after public advertising are not
commercially reasonable (either as to all or some part of the Property) as determined by
ECIDA or the applicable ECIDA Affiliate in its sole discretion.

(e) Disposition to a Political Subdivision. ECIDA and each
ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property to New York State or any political subdivision
of New York State.

® Disposition Authorized by Law. ECIDA and each ECIDA
Affiliate may dispose of Property where such disposition is otherwise authorized by law.

4, Reporting Requirements Regarding Negotiated Dispositions.

(a) Preparation of Written Statements. The Contracting Officer shall
prepare a written statement explaining the circumstances of each negotiated disposition
of Property involving any of the following:

@A) the negotiated disposition of personal property which has

an estimated fair market value in excess of Fifteen
Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00);

-111-



(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the negotiated disposition of Real Property that has an
estimated fair market value in excess of One Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00);

the negotiated disposition of Real Property that will be
disposed of by lease if the estimated annual rent over the
term of the lease is in excess of $15,000; or

the negotiated disposition of Real Property or real and
related personal property where the same will be disposed
of by exchange, regardless of value, or any Property any
part of the consideration for which is Real Property.

(b)  Submission of Written Statements. Written statements prepared

pursuant to Article III(B)(4) shall be submitted to the New York State Comptroller, the
Director of the Budget, the Commissioner of General Services and the State Legislature
no later than ninety (90) days prior to the date on which the disposition of Property is
expected to take place. The Contracting Officer shall maintain a copy of all written
statements at ECIDA’s principal office.

5. Below Fair Market Value Dispositions.

(a) ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate may dispose of Property for less than
the fair market value of the Property where:

(@

(i1)

(iii)

Transferee is a government or public entity and terms of
transfer require ownership and use to remain with the
government or public entity; or

Purpose of transfer is within the purpose, mission or statue
of the ECIDA or each applicable ECIDA Affiliate; or

Written notification to the Govemor, Speaker, and
Temporary President. Such notification is subject to denial.
Denial by Governor is in the form of a certification. Denial
by the legislature is in the form of a resolution. Denial
must be made within 60 days of receiving notification
during January through June. Provided no denial, then
authority may effectuate transfer. If legislature receives the
notification in July through December, then legislature may
take 60 days from January 1 of the following year.
However, a local may obtain local approval from the chief
executive and legislature of the political subdivision in lieu
of the notification to the Governor, Speaker and Temporary
President provided the local authority’s enabling legislation

-112-



provides for such approval and the property was obtained
by the authority from the political subdivision.

(b) Board and Public Notice. If a below FMV transfer is proposed, the
following information is required to be provided to the ECIDA board or each
applicable ECIDA Affiliate’s board and to the public:

(1) Description of Asset;

(2) Appraisal of the FMV of the asset:

(3) Description of the purpose of the transfer, the kind and amount
of the benefit to the public resulting from the transfer such as jobs and wages
created or preserved;

(4) Value received compared to FMV;

(5) Names of private parties to the transaction and value received,

(6) Names of private parties that have made an offer, the value of
offer, and purpose for which the asset would have been used.

(c) Board Determination. The board of the ECIDA or applicable ECIDA
Affiliate must make a written determination that there is no reasonable alternative
to the proposed below-market transfer that would achieve the same purpose of
such transfer.

ARTICLE IV
GENERAL PROVISIONS

A, Annual Review and Submission of Guidelines

These Guidelines shall be annually reviewed and approved by the Board of
Directors or Members of the ECIDA and each ECIDA Affiliate. On or before the 31%
day of March of each year, the Contracting Officer shall file (for itself and on behalf of
each ECIDA Affiliate) a copy of the most recently reviewed and adopted Guidelines with
the New York State Comptroller, and shall post the Guidelines on ECIDA’s website.
Guidelines posted on ECIDA’s website shall be maintained at least until the Guidelines
for the following year are posted on ECIDA’s website.

B. Effect of Awarded Contracts

These Guidelines are intended for the guidance of the officers, members, directors
and employees of ECIDA and the ECIDA Affiliates only. Nothing contained herein is
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person, firm or corporation any right,
remedy, claim or benefit under, or by reason of, any requirement or provision hereof, or
be deemed to alter, affect the validity of, modify the terms of or impair any contract or
agreement made or entered into in violation of, or without compliance with, these
Guidelines. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, any deed, bill of

-113-



sale, lease, or other instrument executed by or on behalf of ECIDA or an ECIDA
Affiliate, purporting to transfer title or any other interest in Property shall be conclusive
evidence of compliance with these Guidelines insofar as concerns title or other interest of
any bona fide grantee or transferee who has given valuable consideration for such title or
other interest and has not received actual or constructive notice of lack of compliance
with these Guidelines prior to the closing.

C. Exemption for Certain ECIDA Transactions

These Guidelines shall not be applicable to any agreements or arrangements
involving the provision by ECIDA of “financial assistance” as such term is defined in
Section 854(14) of the New York General Municipal Law (i.e. property dispositions
serving solely as a conduit for providing financial assistance).

Readopted this 26th day of March 2025 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-114-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”), Buffalo
and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (“RDC”) and
Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
(“ILDC”)

RECORD RETENTION AND DISPOSITION POLICY

This Record Retention Policy (“Policy”) is adopted in accordance with Article 57-A of the New
York State Arts and Cultural Affairs Law and Part 185 of 8-CRR-NY Records of Public
Corporations. This Policy shall apply to shall apply to Erie County Industrial Development Agency
and all of its affiliates, including: Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”); Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation (“ILDC”) and such
other affiliates as may hereafter be established by the Agency and which are determined to be
subject to the requirements of Section 2925 of the Public Authorities Law (an “ECIDA Affiliate™)
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by the respective Boards of
each corporation. Unless otherwise indicated, all references to the “Agency” herein shall also
include the ECIDA Affiliates.

The Agency will adhere to the Records Retention and Disposition Schedule for New York Local
Government Records (LGS-1), as may be amended from time to time. In accordance with LGS-
1, no records will be disposed of and/or destroyed, until and unless they have met the minimum
retention periods set forth therein. Records that do not have sufficient administrative, fiscal, legal
or historical value to merit retention beyond the applicable minimum retention period shall be
disposed of. Agency records are the property of the Agency, and no individual Agency member,
officer or employee has, by virtue of his or her position, any personal or property rights to such
records.

The Agency shall designate a Records Management Officer (“RMO”), who will be responsible for
the administration and management of the Agency’s records. Appointment of the RMO shall be
made by the Agency’s Board of Directors.

Adopted this 26th day of March, 2025, by the respective Boards of each corporation referenced
above.

-115-



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Sexual Harassment Policy

L Introduction

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is committed to maintaining a
workplace free from sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of workplace discrimination.
All employees are required to work in a manner that prevents sexual harassment in the workplace.
This policy is one component of the Agency’s commitment to a harassment-free and
discrimination-free work environment.

Sexual harassment is against the law’ and all employees have a legal right to a workplace free from
sexual harassment. Employees are urged to report sexual harassment by filing a complaint
internally with the ECIDA, with a government agency, or in court under federal, state or local
antidiscrimination laws.

II. Policy
This sexual harassment policy has several components:

e Application. This policy applies to all employees, applicants for employment, interns (paid
or unpaid), non-employees® and persons conducting business, regardless of immigration
status, with the ECIDA. In the remainder of this policy, the term “employees” refers to
this collective group.

¢ Sexual Harassment Prohibited. Sexual harassment is prohibited. Sexual harassment is a
form of employee misconduct and will not be tolerated. Any employee or other individual
covered by this policy who engages in sexual harassment or retaliation will be subject to
remedial and/or disciplinary action up to and including termination of their employment.

 Retaliation Prohibited. The Agency will not take an adverse employment action against
any person covered by this policy who reports an incident of sexual harassment, provides
information about an incident of sexual harassment, or otherwise assists in an investigation
of a sexual harassment complaint. The Agency will not tolerate such retaliation against
anyone who, in good faith, reports or provides information about suspected sexual
harassment. Any employee of the Agency who retaliates against anyone involved in a
sexual harassment investigation will be subjected to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination. All employees, paid or unpaid interns, or non-employees working in the

! While this policy specifically addresses sexual harassment, harassment because of and discrimination against persons of all
protected classes is prohibited. In New York State, such classes include age, race, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation,
military status, sex, disability, marital status, domestic violence victim status, gender identity or expression, familial status,
predisposing genetic characteristics, and criminal history.

2 A non-employee is someone who is {or is employed by) a contractor, subcontractor, vendor, consultant, or anyone providing
services to the Agency. Protected non-employees include persons commonly referred to as independent contractors, “gig”
workers and temporary workers. Also included are persons providing equipment repair, cleaning services or any other services
provided pursuant to a contract with the employer.

-116-



workplace who believe they have been subject to such retaliation should inform a
supervisor, manager, or Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer. All employees,
paid or unpaid interns or non-employees who believe they have been a target of such
retaliation may also seek relief in other available forums, as explained below in the section
on Legal Protections.

¢ Individual Liability for Sexual Harassment. Sexual harassment is offensive, is a

violation of Agency policy, is unlawful, and may subject the Agency to liability for harm
to targets of sexual harassment. Sexual harassers may also be individually subject to
liability. Employees of every level who engage in sexual harassment, including managers
and supervisors who engage in sexual harassment or who allow such behavior to continue,
will be penalized for such misconduct.

e Investigation. The Agency will conduct a prompt and thorough investigation that ensures
due process for all parties, whenever management receives a complaint about sexual
harassment or otherwise knows of possible sexual harassment occurring. The Agency will
keep the investigation confidential to the extent possible. Effective corrective action will
be taken whenever sexual harassment is found to have occurred. All employees, including
managers and supervisors, are required to cooperate with any investigation of sexual
harassment.

* Reporting for Bystanders. All employees, as well as any other individuals covered by
this policy, are encouraged to report any behavior or conduct that violates this policy. The
Agency will provide all employees a complaint form to report harassment and file
complaints.

® Reporting for Managers and Supervisors. Managers and supervisors are required to
report any sexual harassment complaint that they receive or any sexual harassment that
they observe or become aware of to Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer.

II1. Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination and is unlawful under federal, state, and (where
applicable) local law. Sexual harassment includes harassment on the basis of sex, sexual
orientation, self-identified or perceived sex, gender expression, gender identity and the status of
being transgender. Sexual harassment is not limited to sexual contact, touching, or expressions of
a sexually suggestive nature. Sexual harassment includes all forms of gender discrimination
including gender role stereotyping and treating employees differently because of their gender.

Understanding gender diversity is essential to recognizing sexual harassment because
discrimination based on sex stereotypes, gender expression and perceived identity are all forms of
sexual harassment. The gender spectrum is nuanced, but the three most common ways people
identify are cisgender, transgender, and non-binary. A cisgender person is someone whose gender
aligns with the sex they were assigned at birth. Generally, this gender will align with the binary of
male or female. A transgender person is someone whose gender is different than the sex they were
assigned at birth. A non-binary person does not identify exclusively as a man or a woman. They
might identify as both, somewhere in between, or completely outside the gender binary. Some may
identify as transgender, but not all do. Respecting an individual’s gender identity is a necessary
first step in establishing a safe workplace.

-117-



Sexual harassment is unlawful when it subjects an individual to inferior terms, conditions, or
privileges of employment. Harassment need not be severe or pervasive to be unlawful and can be
any harassing conduct that consists of more than petty slights or trivial inconveniences. Sexual
harassment includes unwelcome conduct which is either of a sexual nature or which is directed at
an individual because of that individual’s sex when:

e Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment,
even if the reporting individual is not the intended target of the sexual harassment;

¢ Such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of employment; or

e Submission to or rejection of such conduct is used as the basis for employment decisions
affecting an individual’s employment.

There are, generally, two types of sexual harassment:

A sexually harassing hostile work environment includes, but is not limited to, words, signs, jokes,
pranks, intimidation, or physical violence which are of a sexual nature, or which are directed at an
individual because of that individual’s sex. Sexual harassment also consists of any unwanted
verbal or physical advances, sexually explicit derogatory statements, or sexually-charged remarks
made by someone which are offensive or objectionable to the recipient, which cause the recipient
discomfort or humiliation, or which interfere with the recipient’s job performance.

Sexual harassment also occurs when a person in authority tries to trade job benefits for sexual
favors. This can include hiring, promotion, continued employment or any other terms, conditions
or privileges of employment. This is also called in legal terms “quid pro quo” harassment.

Any employee who feels harassed should report so that any violation of this policy can be corrected
promptly. Any harassing conduct, even a single incident, can be addressed under this policy.

Examples of sexual harassment:

Although is not possible to identify every act that constitutes sexual harassment, the following
describes some types of acts that may be unlawful sexual harassment and that are strictly
prohibited:

e Physical acts of a sexual nature, such as:

o touching, pinching, patting, kissing, hugging, grabbing, brushing against another
employee’s body or poking another employees’ body;

o rape, sexual battery, molestation or attempts to commit these assaults.

e Unwanted sexual advances or propositions, such as:

o requests for sexual favors accompanied by implied or overt threats concerning the
target’s job performance evaluation, a promotion, or other job benefits or
detriments; or

o subtle or obvious pressure for unwelcome sexual activities.

e Sexually oriented gestures, noises, remarks, or jokes, or comments about a person’s
sexuality or sexual experience which create a hostile work environment. This includes

-118-



remarks made in “remote” work arrangements, such as comments and jokes made on video
conferences or shared via email or other messaging platforms.
Sex stereotyping occurs when conduct or personality traits are considered inappropriate

simply because they may not conform to other people's ideas or perceptions about how
individuals of a particular sex should act or look.
o Remarks regarding an employee’s gender expression, such as wearing a garment
typically associated with a different gender identity; or
o Asking employees to take on traditionally gendered roles, such as asking a woman
to serve meeting refreshments when it is not part of, or appropriate to, her job duties.

Sexual or discriminatory displays or publications anywhere in the workplace, such as:

o Displaying emails, pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, promotional
material, reading materials or other materials that are sexually demeaning or
pornographic (this includes such sexual displays on workplace computers or cell
phones and sharing these displays while in the workplace).

o This also extends to the virtual or remote workspace and can include having such
materials visible in the background of one’s home during a virtual meeting.
Hostile actions taken against an individual because of that individual’s sex, sexual

orientation, gender identity and the status of being transgender, such as:

o Interfering with, destroying or damaging a person’s workstation, tools or
equipment, or otherwise interfering with the individual’s ability to perform the job;
Sabotaging an individual’s work;

Bullying, yelling, name-calling;
Intentional misuse of an individual’s preferred pronouns; or
Setting different expectations for individuals based on their genders and identities.

0O o0O0O

Who can be a target of sexual harassment?

Sexual harassment can occur between any individuals, regardless of their sex or gender. New York
Law protects employees, paid or unpaid interns, and non-employees, including independent
contractors, and those employed by companies contracting to provide services in the workplace.
Harassers can be a superior, a subordinate, a coworker or anyone in the workplace including an
independent contractor, contract worker, vendor, client, customer or visitor.

Where can sexual harassment occur?

Unlawful sexual harassment is not limited to the physical workplace itself. It can occur while
employees are traveling for business or at employer sponsored events or parties. Calls, texts,
emails, and social media usage by employees can constitute unlawful workplace harassment,
even if they occur away from the workplace premises, on personal devices or during non-work

hours.

Sexual harassment can occur when employees are working remotely from home as well. Any
behaviors outlined above that leave an employee feeling uncomfortable, humiliated, or unable
to meet their job requirements constitute harassment even if the employee or covered

-119-



individual is at home when the harassment occurs. Harassment can happen on virtual meeting
platforms, in messaging apps, and after working hours between personal cell phones.

1V. Retaliation

Unlawful retaliation can be any action that could discourage a worker from coming forward to
make or support a sexual harassment claim. Adverse action need not be job-related or occur in the
workplace to constitute unlawful retaliation (e.g., threats of physical violence outside of work
hours).

Examples of retaliation include, but are not limited to:

e Demotion, termination, reduced hours, or assignment to less desirable shifts; Reducing
work responsibilities;
Transfer to a less desirable work location;
Passing-over qualified employees for a promotion.

Such retaliation is unlawful under federal, state, and (where applicable) local law. The New York
State Human Rights Law protects any individual who has engaged in “protected activity,” which
occurs when an individual has:

¢ made a complaint of sexual harassment or discrimination either internally with the ECIDA
or externally with any anti-discrimination agency;

e testified or assisted in a proceeding involving sexual harassment or discrimination under
the Human Rights Law or other anti-discrimination law;

e opposed sexual harassment by making a verbal or informal complaint to management or
by simply informing a supervisor or manager of harassment;

e reported that another employee has been sexually harassed; or
encouraged a fellow employee to report harassment.

Even if the alleged harassment does not turn out to rise to the level of a violation of law, the
individual is protected from retaliation if the person had a good faith belief that the practices were
unlawful. However, the retaliation provision is not intended to protect persons making
intentionally false charges of harassment.

V. Reporting Sexual Harassment

Preventing sexual harassment is everyone’s responsibility. The ECIDA cannot prevent or remedy
sexual harassment unless it knows about it. Any employee paid or unpaid intern or non-employee
who has been subjected to behavior that may constitute sexual harassment is encouraged to report
such behavior to a supervisor, manager or human resources. In addition, anyone who witnesses or
becomes aware of potential instances of sexual harassment should report such behavior to a
supervisor, manager, or human resources.

Reports of sexual harassment may be made verbally or in writing. A form for submission of a
written complaint is attached to this Policy, and all employees are encouraged to use this complaint

-120-



form. Employees who are reporting sexual harassment on behalf of other employees should use
the complaint form and note that it is on another employee’s behalf.

VL.  Supervisory Responsibilities

Supervisors and managers bear responsibility in preventing sexual harassment and discrimination.
All supervisors and managers who receive a complaint or information about suspected sexual
harassment, observe what may be sexually harassing behavior or for any reason suspect that sexual
harassment is occurring, are required to report such suspected sexual harassment to human
resources.

Supervisors and managers who knowingly allow sexual harassment to occur and fail to report the
sexual harassment to human resources will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination of their employment.

In addition to being subject to discipline if they engaged in sexually harassing conduct themselves,
supervisors and managers will be subject to discipline for failing to report suspected sexual
harassment or otherwise knowingly allowing sexual harassment to continue.

Supervisors and managers will also be subject to discipline for engaging in any retaliation.
Supervisors and managers should also monitor subordinates who have reported harassment, to
ensure that their subordinates do not experience retaliation.

VII. Bystander Intervention

Any employee witnessing harassment as a bystander is encouraged to report it. There are five
standard methods of bystander intervention that can be used when anyone witnesses harassment
or discrimination and wants to help.

1. A bystander can interrupt the harassment by engaging with the individual being harassed
and distracting them from the harassing behavior;

2. A bystander who feels unsafe interrupting on their own can ask a third party to help
intervene in the harassment;

3. A bystander can record or take notes on the harassment incident to benefit a future
investigation;

4. A bystander might check in with the person who has been harassed after the incident, see
how they are feeling and let them know the behavior was not ok; and

5. If a bystander feels safe, they can confront the harassers and name the behavior as
inappropriate. When confronting harassment, physically assaulting an individual is never
an appropriate response.

Though not exhaustive, and dependent on the circumstances, the guidelines above can serve as a
brief guide of how to react when witnessing harassment in the workplace. Any employee
witnessing harassment as a bystander is encouraged to report it.

-121-



VIII. Complaint and Investigation of Sexual Harassment

All complaints or information about sexual harassment will be investigated, whether that
information was reported in verbal or written form. Investigations will be conducted in a timely
manner and will be kept confidential to the extent possible.

An investigation of any complaint, information or knowledge of suspected sexual harassment will
be prompt and thorough, commenced immediately and completed as soon as possible. All persons
involved, including complainants, witnesses and alleged harassers will be accorded due process,
as outlined below, to protect their rights to a fair and impartial investigation.

Any employee may be required to cooperate as needed in an investigation of suspected sexual
harassment. The ECIDA will not tolerate retaliation against employees who file complaints,
support another’s complaint or participate in an investigation regarding a violation of this policy.

While the process may vary from case to case, investigations will generally be conducted in
accordance with the following steps:

¢ Upon receipt of a complaint, the ECIDA will conduct an immediate review of the
allegation(s) and take any interim actions (e.g., instructing the respondent to refrain from
communications with the complainant) as appropriate. If the complaint is verbal, the
ECIDA will encourage the individual to complete the “Complaint Form” in writing. If he
or she refuses, the ECIDA will prepare a Complaint Form based on the verbal reporting.
Obtain and preserve documents relevant to the allegation(s).

¢ Request and review all documents relevant to the allegation(s) including all electronic
communications.

e Interview all parties involved, including any relevant witnesses.

e Create a written document of the investigation (such as a letter, memorandum or email)
which contains the following:

o A list of all documents reviewed, along with a detailed summary of relevant
documents;

o A list of names of those interviewed, along with a detailed summary of their
statements;

o A timeline of events;

o A summary of prior relevant incidents, reported or unreported; and

o The basis for the decision and final resolution of the complaint, together with any
corrective action(s).

e Retain the written documentation and associated documents in a secure and confidential
location.

o Promptly notify the individual who reported and the individual(s) about whom the
complaint was made of the final determination and implement any corrective actions
identified in the written document.

e Inform the individual who reported the right to file a complaint or charge externally as
discussed in the next section of this policy.

-122-



VIII. Legal Protections and External Remedies

Sexual harassment is not only prohibited by the Erie County Industrial Development Agency
(ECIDA) but also by federal, state, and, where applicable, local law. In addition to the Agency’s
internal process, employees may choose to pursue legal remedies with the following governmental
agencies While a private attorney is not required to file a complaint with a governmental agency,
you may seek the legal advice of an attorney.

In addition to those outlined below, employees in certain industries may have additional legal
protections.

A. Civil Rights Act of 1964

The United States Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) enforces federal anti-
discrimination laws, including Title VII of the 1964 federal Civil Rights Act (codified as 42 U.S.C.
§ 2000¢ et seq.). An individual can file a complaint with the EEOC anytime within 300 days of
the harassment. There is no cost to file a complaint with the EEOC. The EEOC will investigate
the complaint and determine whether there is reasonable cause to believe that discrimination has
occurred. If the complaint cannot be resolved in the EEOC, such as by voluntary settlement, a
hearing, or otherwise, the EEOC may issue a Notice of Right to Sue that permits complaining
parties to file a lawsuit in Federal court. If an individual files an administrative complaint with the
New York State Division of Human Rights (discussed below), the Division will automatically file
the complaint with the EEOC to preserve the right to proceed in federal court.

If an employee believes that they have been discriminated against at work, they can file a “charge
of discrimination” with the EEOC. The EEOC has district, area, and field offices where complaints
can be filed. Contact the EEOC by phone (1-800-669-4000) or email (info@eeoc.gov). The
EEOC’s website is www.eeoc.gov.

B. New York State Human Rights Law (HRL)

The Human Rights Law (HRL), codified as N.Y. Executive Law, art. 15, § 290 et seq., applies to
all employers in New York State with regard to sexual harassment, and protects employees, interns
(paid or unpaid), and non-employees, regardless of immigration status. A complaint alleging
violation of the HRL may be filed either with the Division of Human Rights (DHR) or in New
York State Supreme Court.

Complaints of sexual harassment with the DHR may be filed any time within three years of the
harassment. If an individual did not file at the DHR, they can sue directly in state court under the
HRL within three years of the alleged harassment. An individual may not file with the DHR if
they have already filed a HRL complaint in state court.

Complaining internally to the ECIDA does not extend your time to file with the DHR or in court.
The three years is counted from the date of the most recent sexual harassment incident.

You do not need an attorney to file a complaint with the DHR and there is no cost to file with the
DHR.

-123-



The DHR will investigate your complaint and determine whether there is probable cause to believe
that sexual harassment has occurred. Probable cause cases are forwarded to a public hearing before
an administrative law judge. If sexual harassment is found after a hearing, the DHR has the power
to award relief, which varies but may include requiring your employer to take action to stop the
harassment, or redress the damage caused, including paying of monetary damages, attorney’s fees
and civil fines.

The DHR’s main office is at One Fordham Plaza, Fourth Floor, Bronx, New York 10458. You
can also contact the DHR by phone (1-888-392-3644) or email (info@dhr.ny.gov). The DHR’s
website is dhr.ny.gov/complaint. The website has a complaint form that can be downloaded,
filled out, notarized and mailed to the DHR. The website also contains contact information for
the DHR’s regional offices. You may also contact the DHR sexual harassment hotline at 1(800)
HARASS3 for more information.

C. Local Protections

Many localities enforce laws protecting individuals from sexual harassment and discrimination.
An individual should contact the county, city or town in which they live to find out if such a law
exists. For example, employees who work in New York City may file complaints of sexual
harassment with the New York City Commission on Human Rights. Contact their main office at
Law Enforcement Bureau of the NYC Commission on Human Rights, 22 Reade Street, 1st Floor,
New York, New York; call 311 or (212) 306-7450; or  visit
www.nyc.gov/html/cchr/html/home/home.shtml.

D. Contact the Local Police Department

If the harassment involves unwanted physical touching, coerced physical confinement or coerced
sex acts, the conduct may constitute a crime. Contact the local police department.

Amended and restated this 26th day of March 2025 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

-124-



Complaint Form for Reporting Sexual Harassment
ECIDA

New York State Labor Law requires all employers to adopt a sexual harassment prevention policy
that includes a complaint form for employees to report alleged incidents of sexual harassment.

If you believe that you have been subjected to sexual harassment, you are encouraged to complete
this form and submit it to Mollie Profic, CFO/Human Resources Officer, or John Cappellino,
President via email or paper. You will not be retaliated against for filing a complaint.

If you are more comfortable reporting verbally or in another manner, your employer should
complete this form, provide you with a copy and follow its sexual harassment prevention policy
by investigating the claims as outlined at the end of this form.

For additional resources, visit: ny.gov/programs/combating-sexual-harassment-workplace

Complainant Information

Name:

Home Address:

Work Address:

Home Phone:

Work Phone:

Job Title:

Email:

Select Preferred Communication Method:

Supervisor Information
Immediate Supervisor’s Name:

Title:
Work Phone:
Work Address:
COMPLAINT INFORMATION
1. Your complaint of Sexual Harassment is made about:
Name:
Title:
Work Address:
Work Phone:

Relationship to you: [[Supervisor; Subordinate; Co-Worker; Other]]

2. Please describe what happened and how it is affecting you and your work. Please use
additional sheets of paper if necessary and attach any relevant documents or evidence.

10

-125-



3. Date(s) sexual harassment occurred:
Is the sexual harassment continuing? [[Yes/No]]

4. Please list the name and contact information of any witnesses or individuals that may
have information related to your complaint:

* The last question is optional, but may help the investigation. *

5. Have you previously complained or provided information (verbal or written) about
related incidents? If yes, when and to whom did you complain or provide information?

If you have retained legal counsel and would like us to work with them, please provide their
contact information.

I request that the ECIDA investigate this complaint of sexual harassment in a timely and
confidential manner as outlined below and advise me of the results of the investigation.

Signature:

Date:

I have received the Agency’s Sexual Harassment Policy and Complaint Form

Employee Name (Printed)

Employee Name (Signature)

Date:

11

-126-



